
 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

1055 Ventura Ave. 
Oak View, CA 93022 

Board Room 
September 14, 2016 

3:00 P.M. 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the August 24, 2016 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution approving the joint funding agreement with United 

States Geological Survey for the Cooperative Stream Gaging 
Program from November 1, 2016 – October 31, 2017. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 8/24/16 – 

9/08/16. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report 
 



 2 

7. Recommend approval of the position of Park Ranger/Park Services Officer 
Division Officer. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
8. Regional Efforts to Obtain Access to State Water Entitlements for Western 

Ventura County. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to General Manager 
 
9. Resolution Adopting an Increased Conservation Penalty for Over 

Allocation Water Usage. 
  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
10. Ballot for Election of a Special District Alternate member to the Ventura 

LAFCo. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direction to staff 
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Lake Casitas Recreation Area Report for July, 2016. 
b. Water Conservation August 2016 Update. 
c. Annual Livingwise Program Water Education Summary Report. 
d. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
e. Executive Committee Minutes, August 26, 2016. 
f. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
g. Executive Committee Minutes, September 9, 2016. 
h. Letter from Ojai City Council Members William Weirick and Randy 

Haney. 
i. Water Consumption Report. 
j. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
k. Investment Report. 
 

12. Closed Session 
 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation matter pursuant to paragraph (2) of 
subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9: One Case. 
Casitas Municipal Water District has recently received a claim for 
damages related to an employment matter. 
 

13. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1 

 
Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 

Board Meeting Held 
August 24, 2016 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held August 24, 2016 at the Casitas 
Municipal Water District located at 1055 Ventura Ave. in Oak View, California. 
The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. Directors Kaiser, Baggerly, Word, 
Hicks and Bergen were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  
There were five staff members and ten members of the public in attendance.  
President Kaiser led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

Angelo Spadiro spoke regarding a chart in the Urban Water Management 
Plan of 2016 showing lake storage dropping 25,000 acre feet a year since 2011 
and we are only in a stage 3 condition and suggested that the board has the 
authority to declare stage 5 now to show that we have a serious problem with 
water.  This would provide an increased extension of time and decrease the 
slope of loss.  If we continue to wait our margin of time left gets smaller. He 
asked the board to consider going to stage 5 right away. 

  
William Weirick spoke about the summit on the 22nd and offered the city as 

a partner for livestreaming on cable access and archiving and suggested the 
meeting be held at the Boyd center. 
 

Renee Roth with the Green Coalition discussed efforts of the Save Our 
Ojai Water campaign.  They are working to develop standard landscaping 
guidelines and looking for methods to have this endeavor paid for.  $10,000 for 
each watershed was suggested and Ms. Roth asked that the board consider 
information that would be coming in the future. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

None 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Baggerly reported that he was at the City Council meeting last 
night where they were discussing water and what the city can do.  A lot of 
interested people made comments. He suggested that the city take an active role 
in the Ventura County General Plan update.   
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

None 
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 



 2 

a. Minutes of the August 10, 2016 Board Meeting. 
 
 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director 
Bergen and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 8/10/16 – 

8/17/16.        APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Baggerly, the 
Accounts Payable Report was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Consider the appeal of Mr. Michael Termondt for the $1,000 fine imposed 

for water theft and damage to district facility. 
        Fine reduced to $500 
   

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that staff were involved with the 
discovery of water waste and determined there was theft from a sample point 
onto a property.  Staff also had contact with Mr. Termondt and discussions 
regarding the use of that water which is unmetered and was used for private use 
and in our view a water theft that is going on.  Water was running off the property 
into the street.  We applied a waste of water and water taken out of the system in 
an unauthorized fashion.  Our Rates and Regulations provide several options to 
deal with this.  It is difficult to determine how long this was going on and how 
much water was used.  The Rates and Regulations allow for us to recoup either 
the damages incurred or $1,000.  A notice of violation invoice in the amount of 
$1,000 was issued and Mr. Termondt requested an appeal to you regarding this 
activity.  
 

Mr. Termondt addressed the board and stated that he has learned a lot 
and has been a Casitas customer for many years, the last three years living in 
Rancho Matilija.  He stated that they were longtime residents of Oak View before 
that and paid their bills on time and had no issues with Casitas for 30 years.  He 
stated they are wrongfully accused of modifying the Casitas pipe with the intent 
to steal water.  He explained that they have one of the oldest homes in area and 
there is an unmarked water faucet which we now understand is a Casitas facility.  
There is nothing that says CMWD on it and no one in my family has touched it or 
used it.  Pictures when we purchased the property show this was unhinged when 
we purchased property.  It is in plain view.  The Casitas representative came out 
to review our landscape.  Police said the hookup was old and rusty.  The sample 
points were not used in a long time or it would have been noticed.  Mr. Termondt 
requested this be dismissed.  He added it is factual that the landscaper did hook 
up and wasted the water.  Mr. Termondt denied actively stealing water stating he 



 3 

did not ask the landscaper to use this water source.  We are very sorry this 
occurred and my wife is embarrassed by this.  He explained that he is on the 
board of Rancho Matilija and is trying to address active water conservation.  In 
the last three years we are down almost 50% and are actively trying to conserve.  
We are not trying to circumvent by stealing water.  He requested the fine be 
reduced or removed and felt the pipe should have been marked. 
 

Director Bergen added that from the pictures staff took it looks as if it was 
saturated and looked like the water was on for a long time. 
 

Mr. Termondt stated the gardener hooked the hose up to the sample 
station.  It was at the corner, we were not aware this was going on.  We are not 
trying to steal water. The gardener should be let go for being a bad gardener.  I’m 
not saying this didn’t happen but it has never happened before.  Director Hick 
said I can’t see you stealing water if you can afford to live in Rancho Matilija.  Mr. 
Termondt added he tried to find information on line about Casitas sample points 
and was unsuccessful.  Director Baggerly asked if we have records showing the 
use of the sample station.  Mr. Wickstrum said he could check into that. 
 

  Director Hicks asked what is the relative water use compared to the 
neighbors.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that he did not get into the analysis of the 
water use but that this is what was going on at the time the discovery was made.  
There was a hose attached to our sample station out by the street.  It had been 
plumbed to where you could attach a hose to it.  Director Bergen added it is 
clearly not a regular hose bib. 
 

President Kaiser asked if he has sprinklers and hose bibs in his yard.  Mr. 
Termondt answered that is correct.  President Kaiser asked if there is a hose bib 
in that area.  Mr. Termondt answered there is a hose bib at the rose garden.   
 

Director Word asked how long have you had this gardener.  Mr. Termondt 
stated he came with the house in 2013.  He added that his wife is an active 
member of Saint Thomas and we are not water thieves and we did not modify 
anything.  My wife is concerned this will affect our name. 
 

Director Word added that obviously someone felt they could get water 
from a great distance. Maybe you need to take this up with your gardener.  Mr. 
Termondt stated we have. 
 

Director Baggerly asked about the damage to the sample station. Mr. 
Wickstrum stated it cost less than $200 to remedy the sample station.   
 
 Director Word moved that the invoice be reduced to $500. This was 
seconded by Director Bergen and approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
 



 4 

 
 
 
8. Presentation of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement creating the 

Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency, Final Draft. 
 

  Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that this is the result of a lot of work and 
time and effort with Casitas, Meiners Oaks, Ventura River Water, Ventura Water, 
the County of Ventura with assistance from the Collaborative Center out of 
Sacramento and attorneys.  There is no action required today; this will come 
back to the board for approval and appointing of a Casitas representative on the 
GSA Board.  
 
9. Recommend approval of the position of Park Ranger/Park Services Officer 

Division Manager.   Referred back to Personnel Committee 
 

Park Services Manager Carol Belser explained that this is part of the 
evolution in getting Park Rangers at the recreation area and fulfilling a need of 
having some expertise in law enforcement.  This individual is helping with 
policies which are in with Steve for review.  It will help with getting the Park 
Ranger team hired and trained and will work with PSO’s to assimilate them into 
the division.  This will look at changes that have occurred and help move the 
program forward. 
 

Director Baggerly stated he has issues with this item.  In the background 
on board letter, second paragraph, the sentence reads the position is at will 
under a yearly contract. You can’t be at will if you have a contract.  It is not an 
appropriate approach to this issue.  You hired him as a consultant to help the 
PSO’s move to Rangers.  I don’t think hiring the person that should be training 
them as Park Rangers and getting them ready for the training would be 
appropriate for having supervision.  Have him remain as a consultant and do his 
best.  I can’t agree with this.  Director Hicks asked why this didn’t come to 
recreation committee.  Mr. Wickstrum stated it went to personnel.  Director Hicks 
stated I can’t support it either. 
 

President Kaiser also spoke about having a contract versus being at will 
and suggested a limited term position.  He added that he has no problems with 
supervisory authority and the person also being the training officer.  He 
suggested that this be cleaned up and brought back. 
Director Hicks suggested hiring him as a consultant as we don’t need another 
employee.  Mr. Belser explained that this is within the existing budget. Director 
Word added that as a consultant he does not have the authority to supervise. 
President Kaiser added it is not uncommon to be a trainer and a supervisor. 
 

Director Word asked if the intent is to have this person to be supervising 
and on an on-call basis 24/7.  Ms. Belser answered yes.  There is a need to have 
someone available and this would meet that need. She added that she is looking 
for someone to lead, train and oversee the new staff as they come on board and 
to help assimilate the current PSO’s depending on their professional goals into 
the department.  President Kaiser asked if this improved the efficiency and 



 5 

effectiveness of the workforce. Ms. Belser explained that we are working through 
the process to hire FT Park Rangers. She explained that the current person is 
not a consultant; he is a part-time employee, paid by the hour. 
 

Director Bergen added you are trying to move him from part time to full 
time.  Mr. Wickstrum added this new position is created as a management 
training officer.  We would hire as a full time position and move forward with the 
objectives we are trying to accomplish. President Kaiser added that we do need 
some expertise during this delicate transition and this is helpful in that regard. 
 

Danny Carrillo, Interim Regional Director of SEIU Local 721 spoke and 
stated that the board brought up a lot of questions I had as I was confused in the 
staff report that was presented.  He suggested there be research on the VCERA 
retirement program as to limitations on hours with CalPERS.  Mr. Carrillo added 
that this individual was brought in as a part time consultant and maybe that is the 
best way to go, to keep as a consultant.  As a consultant, we don’t appreciate or 
like consultants to have hiring/firing or ability or to do a performance evaluation 
but they might have input but not be the primary authority.  Is there a job 
description developed with the scope of duties.  If you bring the individual in as a 
supervisor we represent supervisors.  There are a lot of questions.  We don’t 
want to see part time workers doing full time work.  Current PSO’s have the 
ability to apply for a Park Ranger position and I hope those that don’t want to will 
still have a job here and duties they can perform. As a consultant, you don’t have 
to provide benefits.  How much is this position earning and how much will the 
budget allow him to be paid? Mr. Carrillo suggested that this be tabled and get 
questions answered before moving forward. 
 

  President Kaiser added that the idea of having this position makes sense 
to me.  Someone with 35 years of experience to help us transition through this to 
limited peace officer status makes sense in a lot of ways.  From personal 
knowledge the retirement is separate from PERS.  There are a lot of questions 
posed that need to be cleared up.  Let staff go through the comments and bring 
back to the board for consideration. 
 

Director Hicks added we don’t need an Assistant Recreation Manager or 
Assistant Park Manager. 
 

Director Word suggested that this needs more flushing out and requested 
that this come back to the Personnel Committee. 
 

Director Baggerly added there is a misperception here with the board 
members.  Was this person was hired as a part time employee or as a 
consultant.  Mr. Wickstrum responded he was hired as a part time employee. 
President Kaiser directed it back to the Personnel Committee. 
 
10. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Water Resources 

Engineering Associates in the not to exceed amount of $25,000 to provide 
Engineering Services for a water security project analysis. 

        APPROVED 
  



 6 

 
Mr. Wickstrum explained that there have been discussions with WREA to 

prepare a water security analysis and go through a list of projects asking the 
question of how do we bring more water into this area, addressing the topic of 
state water and provide more information to this board to try to develop more 
water supplies as Lake Casitas may continue to diminish.  They are looking to 
have this put this together by Oct. 7th. 
 
 Bruce Kuebler requested that the board go forward with this proposal and 
specify the interconnection with the State Water Project be specified as one of 
the five key projects.  Second, he added it is important to be in discussions with 
the City of Ventura and ensure that there is the appropriate capacity and find out 
the costs for this. Some think the state connection may be a good alternative 
without knowing the cost. 
 

William Weirick mentioned discussions on pipe size with Susan Mulligan.  
He suggested that the results be presented in a public hearing as it is important 
for the public. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
11. Recommend authorizing the General Manager to expend up to $20,000 

for 3M Pump Plant Road Work.     APPROVED 
 

  On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Hicks, the 
above recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
12. Review of the draft Resale Memorandum of Understanding for water 

Allocation Assignment and Integrated Management of Local Water 
Supplies.      Approved in Principle 

 
Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that efforts are underway to get 

together and speak with one voice regarding water conservation issues and lay 
out a common understanding.  Mr. Wickstrum is hopeful that the other general 
managers can approve this MOU and then we can move forward to assign an 
allocation of water and put it in the books. We have many agencies that need to 
work together to get the reductions in demand and provide enough water for 
public health and safety. 
 

President Kaiser added that it is important for the public to be aware that 
we are serious about this. 



 7 

 
On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Word, the draft 

Memorandum of Understanding was approved in principle by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
13. Recommend the Board consider the invitation to inspect the State Water 

project.        APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Baggerly 
attendance was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
14. Information Items: 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes 
b. Personnel Committee Minutes 
c. Notice of Availability of the Draft Environmental Impact Report for 

the Water Supply Contract Extension Project. 
d. Investment Report. 
 
The information items were offered by Director Word, seconded by 

Director Bergen and approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
President Kaiser called for a recess at 4:37 p.m. prior to moving the 

meeting into closed session.   
 
President Kaiser moved the meeting to closed session at 4:44 p.m. 
 

15. Closed Session 
 

a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 
Conference with Labor Negotiators:    
Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira, Draza Mrvichin 
Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit and 
Recreation Unit.  

 
 President Kaiser moved the meeting back into open session at 5:42 p.m. 
with Mr. Mathews stating the Board had discussion with labor negotiators and 
there was no reportable action taken. 
 
16. Adjournment  



 8 

 
 President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 5:43 p.m. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       James W. Word, Secretary 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2016\09-14-16\STREAMEM.2016-17.doc 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN E. WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: USGS-CMWD COOPERATIVE STREAM GAGING PROGRAM FOR 

NOVEMBER 1, 2016 TO OCTOBER 31, 2017 - VENTURA RIVER NEAR 
VENTURA GAGING STATION  

DATE: SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve continuing the cooperative stream 
gaging program with the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) for the Ventura River near 
Ventura station and adopt the resolution. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Since 1961 Casitas and the USGS have maintained agreements for the USGS operation 
of various stream and reservoir gaging stations within the District.  In 1988, Casitas 
assumed the operation of all subject stations, with the exception of the Ventura River near 
Ventura gaging station that is located near the Foster Park Bridge.  The USGS has reliably 
provided Casitas, City of Ventura and Ventura County with information gathered from this 
key gaging station. 
 
Attached is a letter from the U.S. Geological Survey dated August 16, 2016 that outlines 
the proposed source of funding for the gaging station program.  The local cost share 
portion of the agreement has increased to $14,700 from $14,250 for the 2016-17 water 
year, a 3.2% increase.  The City of San Buenaventura (Ventura) and Ventura County 
Watershed Protection District (VCWPD) will continue to be partners with Casitas and 
divide this cost equally.  The actual cost to Casitas will be $4900. 
 
The cost for this agreement is included in the FY 2016-17 Budget.  USGS has provided 
two copies of a Joint Funding Agreement for Casitas to sign and return.   
 
 
 
Attachment – USGS letter and Joint Funding Agreement 
           



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING EXECUTION OF A 
JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY AND 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 

WHEREAS, Casitas Municipal Water District and the U.S. Geological Survey, U.S. 
Department of the Interior, have previously entered into a cooperative agreement involving 
matching funds covering the operation and maintenance of a certain stream gaging stations in the 
Ventura River watershed;  and 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that arrangements for the U.S. Geological Survey to perform 
the operation and maintenance of the Ventura River near Ventura stream gaging station during 
the November 1, 2016 to October 31, 2017 period;  and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Geological Survey has indicated that subject to the availability of 
Federal matching funds, the U.S. Geological Survey will provide $7,400 in funds;  and 

 
Whereas, Casitas Municipal Water District’s cost to have the U.S. Geological Survey 

operate and maintain the Ventura River near Ventura stream gaging station during the November 
1, 2016 to October 31, 2017 period will be $14,700; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District that the General Manager is hereby authorized and directed on behalf of 
Casitas to sign the Joint Funding Agreement in the form provided by the U.S. Geological Survey, 
and request continuation of said cooperative arrangements during the period November 1, 2016 
through October 31, 2017 at a fixed total cost of $14,700 to Casitas.  Further, direct staff to seek 
reimbursement of two-thirds of the $14,700 upon receipt of the billing from the U.S. Geological 
Survey. 
 

ADOPTED this                                day of                                                            , 2016. 
 

__________________________________ 
    President,                               
    Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Secretary, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 















































1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
FROM:   Carol Belser, Parks Services Manager 
SUBJECT: Justification for a Division Officer 
DATE:  September 9, 2016 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve an exempt management level, at-will,  Division Officer position to oversee the formation and 
implementation of the Park Ranger/Park Services Officer Division.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the April 27, 2016 meeting of the Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) Board of Directors  
direction was given that the Park Services Officers were to operate in an observe and report mode as of 
that date. This resulted in an immediate cessation of Ordinance enforcement by the regular means of 
law enforcement presence (through uniform and badge), citation writing, and changed to an “observe 
and report” means of enforcement. 
   
At the May 25, 2016 meeting, the Board of Directors adopted CMWD Ordinance 16-01 Establishing 
Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area in part to provide for 
employment of sworn Park Rangers with limited peace officer authority pursuant to Penal Code 
830.34(d). 

The General Manager submitted a memo from the Park Services Manager dated August 17, 2016 to 
the Board at the August 24, 2016 meeting recommending approval of a new at-will manager position 
of Division Officer for the new Park Ranger/Park Services Officer Division. The Board requested staff 
to provide additional information and justification for the position and submit a report to the Personnel 
Committee for review. 

Because of the change in status of the Park Services Officer positions to observe and report, and the 
subsequent decision to employ Park Rangers with Limited Peace Officer status, a new Division is 
being established with policies and procedures for certification, training of various types, etc. In order 
to accomplish a smooth transition given the complexity of the undertaking, staff has determined that 
a full-time, manager, at-will position would provide the flexibility and expertise required to facilitate 
the change. 

Analysis 

The purpose for requesting a management, at-will position is to recruit a professional who will perform 
the complex work required to organize the new Division, integrating new Park Rangers and existing 



2 
 

Park Services Officers. The Division Officer will accomplish this by: 
 

(a) Providing expertise to coordinate the goals, objectives and functions for the operation 
of the Division. 

 
 (b) Developing Park Ranger recruitment and screening processes. 
 
 (c) Developing Division policies and training protocols. 
 

(d) Providing all Division staff with supervision, leadership, direction, development and 
oversight.  

 
The Division Officer in a supervising, leadership role is critical for creating a stable foundation for the 
launch of the new Division. The role of the Division Officer will be to provide expertise in the following 
areas: 
 
 (a) Developing the Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 
 (b) Developing training programs as required. 
 

(c) Providing leadership and supervision to Division staff to ensure their full understanding 
and compliance with the requirements of consistency, integrity and accountability 
required by their Division duties. 

 
(d) Acting as a mentor to assist Division staff in reaching their full potentials as required by 

their duties. 
 
 (e) Constantly reinforcing the standards to be achieved. 
 
A critical element to the establishment of the Division authority to perform authorized limited 
enforcement activities is currently in development under the guidance of Casitas management and 
specialized legal counsel. The Park Ranger Policy Manual will establish the training, documentation, 
field duties, protocols and procedures, rules and customer services requirements for the Division staff to 
perform their duties. Once approved by the General Manager, it will then be reviewed by CMWD counsel, 
SEIU 721 and finally submitted for approval by the Board of Directors.  
 
The Manual must be in place prior to the swearing in of the new Park Rangers.  An example of the depth 
of scope of policies and procedures is shown on Exhibit A attached hereto.  The manual has been 
developed using Lexipol, a provider of state-specific defensible policies, training and legal updates for 
public safety organizations focused on law enforcement. Lexipol was recommended by CMWD 
counsel. The Division Officer is critical to the successful implementation of the Manual and leadership 
of the new Division.  
 
While the Park Ranger Policy Manual contains written guidelines, not every situation the limited peace 
officers may encounter can be covered in a manual and they will be required to use their own 



3 
 

judgment or attempt to interpret the written word. An experienced Division Officer may observe 
behavior that inadvertently could be detrimental to CMWD and the public and offer a better solution to 
the problem. Leadership, or lack thereof, shown by a supervisor can have a dramatic effect on how 
the agency is perceived by the community and customers. Fulfillment of the functions of the policies is 
dependent on customer perception of Park Rangers' ability to secure and maintain respect. This will 
be facilitated through the professional and experienced leadership of a Division Officer who will 
organize, problem solve, plan, evaluate, react and recommend change when necessary to reach the 
desired goal. 
 
The policy manual outlines scope, authority entrusted, tools, protocols and chain of command, the 
powers of a peace officer and ability to exercise the authority only granted to them by CMWD. 
 
Scope of authority and use-of-force are extremely significant elements of the policies and procedures 
that require immense understanding and training of staff. Lack of leadership by an experienced 
supervisor can result in Park Rangers and staff exercising more, or not enough, liberty. For example, 
factors used to determine reasonable use of force must be clearly understood, trained and followed. 
Park Rangers and staff may be involved in potential circumstances where there a duty to intercede 
and report infractions to the chain of command and staff involvement is critical for an efficient well 
trained and well communicated team. Field staff notification to the Division Officer will be required to 
document and evaluate incidents. The use of force has a built in review procedure incorporated into a 
policy which involves establishment of the process to review use of force and requires administrative 
action such as removal for line duty assignment, review with the General Manager and Human 
Resources. Clear communication on this area and appropriate documentation again is critical. 
 
Depending on the Board’s direction, handcuffs may be an assigned tool available to Park Rangers to 
use when the situation requires reasonable restraint for the safety of staff or the general public under 
clearly defined circumstances. Understanding of protocol requires training, practice and evaluation by 
supervisory staff. Reporting and documentation of the use of equipment in relation to the use of force 
policy is paramount. If OC (oleoresin capsicum) spray is carried per the Board’s authority, the Division 
Officer will ensure that certification training conforms to Peace Officer Standards & Training (POST), 
records are kept regarding issuance inventory, training dates, equipment damage, and disposal of 
inoperative outdated or expended devices, and when first aid application is required.  
 
The Division Officer will be instrumental in assuring that Park Ranger training protocols and 
documenting schedules are on track and completed on a regularly scheduled basis. Training 
includes, but is not limited to: state mandated training, professional level First Aid/CPR/AED, use of 
CMWD issued equipment, use of force protocols, invasive species prevention/control and 
management, emergency situations, evacuations of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area, wildlife 
handling and  issues related to wildlife, dog encounters, fire mitigation procedures and tools, 
boating and vessel related training, and customer service training. All standards of conduct and 
training are fundamental for the performance, reputation and trust of personnel and the public.  
 
Without the expertise of practiced leadership and training, CMWD could be vulnerable and exposed to 
liability in the creation and launching of the policies and procedures described herein. This includes 
on-duty and off-duty guidelines, conflicting orders that are unlawful, internal personnel investigations, 



4 
 

ethics, relationships, safety, and behavior unbecoming to an officer.  
 
Of equal importance and in tandem with the development of the Park Ranger Division, is the 
integration of the current Park Services Officer team with the new Park Rangers.  
 
The objective is to create an atmosphere where current and new employees work together as a 
team not as separate entities. The Division Officer’s task will be to create a balance using their 
unique skills for the benefit of the Division and CMWD through protection of the resources and 
improved customer service. An illustration of the Recreation Department’s suggested 
organizational structure is below: 

 
The Park Ranger Division is an extremely welcomed addition to the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
and has tremendous advantages for the operations of the Recreation Area in relation to the large 
number of visitors. It is extremely important that the program is properly launched and set up for the 
many years to come. There are many details to address. The Park Ranger recruitment process has 
commenced. It consists of a job announcement on the CMWD web site and with the California Park 
Ranger Association, receipt of applications, application screening, oral interviews and agility testing. 
Arrangements have been made with the County of Ventura Sheriff’s Office to use the sample battery 
test site at the Sheriff Academy in Camarillo. Additionally, thorough background investigations 
through a professional investigator with POST standards, psychological evaluations through a 



5 
 

licensed and POST qualified psychologist or psychiatrist, and FBI background checks through 
fingerprinting are all the minimum qualifications and procedures each candidate must complete and 
pass to then be considered to be eligible to be sworn in.  

Fiscal Impact 

The fiscal impact of employing a Division Officer is mitigated within the current year fiscal budget. The 
2016/2017, 6200 account, includes provision for new Park Rangers and incumbent Park Services 
Officers, a total of eight full time positions. Currently, there are three Park Services Officers with five 
positions remaining.  The Division Officer will fill one of the five positions, initially as an At-Will 
Manager to launch and stabilize the new Division.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

 

Attachment: Division Officer Job Description  
 
  



7 
 

Exhibit A 
 
1 – Ordinance Enforcement Role and Authority 
Ordinance Enforcement Authority  
Oath of Office  
Park Ranger Policy Manual  
2 - Organization and Administration  
Organizational Structure and Responsibility 
Memorandums  
Training Policy  
Staffing Levels 
3 - General Operations 
Use of Force Review Boards  
Handcuffing and Restraints    
Control Devices and Techniques  
Firearms   
Vehicle Pursuits  
Domestic Violence  
Search and Seizure  
Temporary Custody of Juveniles  
Adult Abuse  
Discriminatory Harassment  
Child Abuse 
Missing Persons 
Public Alerts   
Hate Crimes      
Standards of Conduct   
Information Technology Use 
Report Preparation 
Media Relations  
Subpoenas And Court Appearances  
Mutual Aid and Outside Agency Assistance 
Registered Offender Information 
Major Incident Notification 
Identity Theft  
Private Persons Arrests 
Anti-Reproductive Rights Crimes Reporting 
Limited English Proficiency Services 
Communications with Persons with Disabilities 
Mandatory School Employee Reporting 
Chaplains  
Public Safety Video Surveillance System 
Child and Dependent Adult Safety 



8 
 

Service Animals 
Volunteer Program 
Off-Duty Law Enforcement Actions 
Department Use of Social Media 
Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation 
4 - Patrol Operations 
Patrol Function 
Racial- or Bias-Based Profiling  
Briefing Training 
Crime And Disaster Scene Integrity 
Crisis Response Unit 
Hazardous Material Response 
Hostage and Barricade Incidents 
Response to Bomb Calls  
Mental Illness Commitments 
Cite and Release Policy 
Foreign Diplomatic and Consular Representatives 
Rapid Response And Deployment Policy 
Reporting Police Activity Outside of Jurisdiction 
Immigration Violations 
Emergency Utility Service 
Aircraft Accidents 
Field Training Officer Program 
Obtaining Air Support 
Detentions And Photographing Detainees 
Criminal Organizations 
Ranger Supervisor 
Mobile Audio Video  
Mobile Data Terminal Use 
Portable Audio/Video Recorders 
Medical Marijuana 
Foot Pursuits 
Automated License Plate Readers (ALPRs) 
Homeless Persons 
Crisis Intervention Incidents 
Public Recording of Law Enforcement Activity 
First Amendment Assemblies 
Civil Disputes 
Suspicious Activity Reporting 
Medical Aid and Response 
5 - Traffic Operations  
Traffic Function and Responsibility  
Traffic Collision Reporting 



9 
 

Vehicle and Vessel Towing and Release 
Vehicle Impound Hearings 
Impaired Driving  
Traffic Citations 
Disabled Vehicles 
72-Hour Parking Violations 
6 - Investigation Operations 
Investigation and Prosecution 
Sexual Assault Investigations 
Asset Forfeiture 
Eyewitness Identification 
Brady Material Disclosure 
Unmanned Aerial System (UAS) Operations 
Warrant Service 
Operations Planning and Deconfliction 
7 - Equipment  
Department Owned and Personal Property  
Personal Communication Devices  
Vehicle / Vessel Maintenance 
Vehicle / Vessel Use  
Cash Handling, Security and Management 
8 - Support Services  
Control 2 Communication 
Property and Evidence 
Records Bureau Procedures 
Restoration of Firearm Serial Numbers 
Records Maintenance and Release 
Protected Information 
Computers and Digital Evidence 
Animal Control 
Jeanne Clery Campus Security Act 
9 - Personnel 
Recruitment and Selection 
Evaluation of Employees 
Grievance Procedure 
Anti-Retaliation 
Reporting of Employee Convictions 
Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace 
Sick Leave 
Communicable Diseases 
Smoking and Tobacco Use  
Personnel Complaints 
Seat Belts 



10 
 

Body Armor 
Personnel Files 
Request for Change of Assignment  
Employee Commendations 
Fitness for Duty 
Meal Periods and Breaks 
Lactation Break Policy 
Payroll Record Procedures 
Overtime Compensation Requests 
Outside Employment 
Occupational Disease and Work-Related Injury Reporting 
Personal Appearance Standards 
Uniform Regulations  
Police/Sheriff Cadets 
Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships 
Department Badges  
Temporary Modified Duty Assignments 
Performance History Audits  
Employee Speech, Expression and Social Networking  
Line-of-Duty Deaths  
Illness and Injury Prevention 

 



 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 

JOB TITLE: Division Officer   
   
REPORTS TO: Park Services Manager 
 
SALARY LEVEL: Set by the General Manager 
 
STATUS:  Full Time/Exempt Management/At-will 
 
DATE:   September 9, 2016    
 
Purpose of Special Assignment 
 
At their meeting on May 25, 2016, the Casitas Municipal Water District Board of Directors 
adopted CMWD Ordinance 16-01 Establishing Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of 
the Lake Casitas Recreation Area to provide for employment of sworn Park Rangers with 
Limited Peace Officer authority pursuant to Penal Code 830.34(d). The purpose of this 
position is to provide complex professional work to organize the new Park Rangers and 
existing Park Services Officers into one Division for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
This will be accomplished by (1) providing expertise to coordinate the goals and objectives 
of the operations and functions of the Division; (2) developing employee recruitment and 
screening processes; (3) providing policies and training protocols; and (4) providing 
supervision, leadership, direction and development oversight of Division staff.  
 
The Division Officer is classified as management, exempt, and is at-will. At-will means that 
the term and conditions of employment may be changed with or without advanced notice or 
cause.  It also means the employee may terminate the employment relationship at any time 
for any reason and Casitas has the same right to terminate employment at any time for any 
reason. The Lake Casitas Recreation Area operates 365 days a year, 24 hours per day. As a 
manager, on site reporting may be from the District’s regular 8:00 am - 4:30 pm, Monday – 
Friday standard to ensure the demands of the job are met.  
 
Definition 
 
Under general direction of the Park Services Manager, the Division Officer provides 
advanced professional level work for developing, coordinating, and implementing the Division 
at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  
Duties and Responsibilities 
 
Coordinates with the Park Services Manager and District Management to create 
comprehensive policies and procedures for Park Rangers including but not limited to 
scope of duty and enforcement authority, first responder services, division operations and 
command structure, patrol procedures, internal affairs, use of force policies, use of 



 2 

vehicles and vessels, uniform standards, and documentation standards. 
 
Implements Ordinance enforcement functions of the sworn Limited Peace Officers and 
related training and duties for both sworn and non-sworn staff in relation to established job 
descriptions. Develops and oversees the training of staff and enforcement of applicable 
District Ordinances, government codes and state and federal laws relating to the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area pursuant to PC 830.34(d).   
 
Serves as the technical and functional supervisor for the Division and a communication link 
between the Division staff and the Park Services Manager.   
 
Implements administrative procedures such as policies, practices, equipment purchases 
and use, recruitment standards, training protocols, fiscal issues, problem solving and staff 
communication.   Performs confidential duties for all Division functions.   
 
Gathers data and prepares reports to aid in the smooth transition to integrate and 
coordinate Park Rangers to work in alliance with the Park Services Officers.  
 
Sets up protocols for the Division’s records and reports, reviews existing administrative 
procedures in the area of assignment and initiates or recommends improvements.   
 
Undertakes assignments outside the defined work routine with the expectation of planning 
and carrying out assignments independently.  
 
Prepares work schedules and delegates tasks to employees and supervises the day-to-
day work of Division staff.   
 
Reports on issues and the status of the Division and makes recommendations to the Park 
Services Manager.   
 
Identifies Board authorized Ordinance enforcement tools and coordinates protocols 
required to provide excellent customer service while protecting Casitas’ resources, 
including the water quality of Lake Casitas.  
 
Follows up on Management and committee recommendations and Board action as 
assigned. 
 
Prepares reports and answers inquiries and objectives. Serves as liaison and 
communication link to the Park Services Manager with County Sheriff, federal, state and 
local law enforcement agencies.  
 
Confers and apprises the Park Services Manager on personnel issues which include 



 3 

tailgate meetings, employee memorandums, employee annual reviews, progressive 
discipline, and recruitment status of new hire candidates.  
 
License and Fingerprint Check 
 
Must possess a valid California Driver License and maintain a satisfactory driving record.   
 
Will be required to submit and pass a Department of Justice Livescan fingerprint check. 
 
Tools and Equipment Used  
District owned vehicles, portable radio, computers and related software, wireless 
communication device and telephone.  Other tools or equipment as identified in Park Ranger 
and Park Services Officer job descriptions that may be required to for use and  training 
purposes.   
 
Casitas does not provide a vehicle or mileage reimbursement to commute to and from home 
to work.  Private vehicle mileage reimbursement is provided for business related driving and 
the Lake Casitas Recreation Area does have district vehicles that are available for business 
transportation.   
 
Typical Physical Activities: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is required to stand, sit, walk, use hands 
to feel, handle or operate objects, equipment, tools, or controls, and reach with hands and 
arms.  The employee may push, pull, carry, reach and lift equipment and parts weighing up to 
50 lbs., walk on uneven terrain in an outdoor environment.  Employee is required to work in 
flora and fauna conditions of Southern California and significant temperature changes 
between cold and heat; sit for extended time periods; have hearing and vision within normal 
ranges. 
 
Knowledge and Abilities: 
Knowledge of principles and practices associated with California law enforcement, codes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations related to the public use of the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area, rules of evidence, laws relating to search and seizure, arrest and control techniques, 
and applicable state and local laws, principles and practices of effective supervision, 
principles and practices of patrol techniques for parks, facilities and open spaces, effective 
techniques for dealing with individuals of various ages and from various ethnic, cultural and 
socioeconomic groups, principles and practices of exemplary customer service, methods, 



 4 

materials, equipment and tools used in the operation of grounds, buildings and open spaces, 
principles of first aid and safety, basic budget and record keeping methods. 
 
 



1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE: Regional Efforts to Obtain Access to State Water Entitlements for Western 
Ventura County 

Date:   September 9, 2016 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors give direction to the General Manager. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
The western Ventura County water agencies of Casitas Municipal Water District, United 
water Conservation District, and Ventura Water have proportionately shared the 20,000 acre-
feet of State Water entitlement (5,000 and 5,000, and 10,000 acre-feet respectively).  In the 
heat of the 1990’s drought, the agencies considered a $108 million project to pipe the State 
Water from Castaic Junction to the east end of the City of Ventura.  This pipeline project 
required regional cooperation and consensus that was negated by a referendum vote in the 
City of Ventura and coincided with the return of higher than average rainfall that restored 
groundwater and surface water supplies. 
 
Now - the importance and opportunity to access to the State Water Project entitlements of 
western Ventura County are now critical to the water supplies and appear closer to a 
resolution that does not include the 1990 project.  The region is experiencing what could be 
the historic drought that could alter the way we all look at local water supplies and could 
change life as we know it.  Through the efforts of Ventura Water to establish critical 
emergency water supply conduits through the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (MWD) and Calleguas Municipal Water District (Calleguas), there is now a regional 
collaborative effort to bring State Water into Ventura Water, United Water Conservation 
District and the Casitas Municipal Water District. 
 
The current project involves the wheeling of available portions of State Water entitlements 
through the water systems of MWD and Calleguas to reach the east end of the City of 
Ventura (Saticoy).  The amount of water available is first limited by the annual availability in 
the State Water system (which has varied 0% to 60% during the last five years), the capacity 



2 

 

of the Calleguas system and the size of the proposed pipeline from Calleguas to Saticoy.  
There are also several key elements that are needed to manage the State Water deliveries 
and account for costs. 
 
At this time, it is important to the Casitas District to be an involved participant in this regional 
effort to obtain access to the State Water entitlements.  Ventura Water and Casitas agree 
that the Casitas participation is critical to the long term condition of water supplies in Lake 
Casitas that serve the City of Ventura and the entire service area of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District. 
 
In the immediate future, there will be a need to consider the Casitas District’s participation in 
costs for the engineering design services contract.  Ventura Water has issued a request for 
qualifications (RFQ attached) and will be selecting an engineering firm to accomplish the 
scope of work.  At this time the costs for the services are not known.  Ventura Water has 
indicated that any contributions will be appreciated.   
 
At this time, the Board of Directors are informed of the recently developing opportunities and 
direction to obtain State Water.  I recommend that direction be given to maintain Casitas’ 
direct interest in the project and bring all funding request to the Board’s consideration. 
 
If you have any questions in this regard, please do not hesitate to ask me. 











CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CC:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER  
FROM: RON MERCKLING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS/RESOURCE MANAGER  
SUBJECT: RECOMMENDED INCREASE IN CONSERVATION PENALTY  
DATE: SEPTEMBER 14, 2016  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve an increase in the conservation 
penalty from $1 per unit to $5 per unit for residential customers effective as of October 1, 
2016, and to all other customers from $0.25 per unit to $5 per unit for all overages for the 
2016-17 Fiscal Year. This action is proposed to curtail excess water usage, and to protect 
remaining water supplies for beneficial use throughout the existing drought. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Increasing the conservation penalty to $5 is meant to send a strong price signal to the 
minority of Casitas’ customers that ignored the existing conservation penalty. The 
allocation program, assigned an individual allocation to each of Casitas’ customers, 
starting on July 1, 2015. During Fiscal Year 2015-16, there were 757 acre-feet of water 
used in excessive of allocated water for all customer groups.  
 
As of September 2015, residential customers exceeding their monthly allocation 
received a conservation penalty of $1.00 per unit for usage in excess of their allocation. 
In Fiscal Year 2015-16, residential customers used a total of 210 acre-feet in excess of 
their allocation. There were 805 customers out of 2,711 customers that exceeded their 
monthly allocation at least once during the fiscal year. However, there were a small 
number of residential customers that used excessive amounts of water over their 
allotment. The top ten customers represented only .004% of the total number 
residential customers, but used 19.4% of the total residential over allocation amount for 
the fiscal year.  
 
Governor Gerry Brown signed into law on August 30, 2016, SB 814, which allows water 
agencies to charge up to $500 per unit of water in excess of assigned water budgets. 
The bill allows a water agency to define appropriate water use. It includes the criteria 
Casitas used to develop its allocations, and defines excessive water use as anything 
greater. Exceeding Casitas’ assigned allocation, meets the definition of excessive water 
use. This bill gives Casitas more flexibility to further raise the conservation penalty, if 
the $5 per unit amount proves insufficient in reducing excessive usage. 



 
 
 
The proposed $5.00 penalty amount is comparable to other Southern California water 
agencies, see Table 3. This conservation penalty will have little impact on the 71% of 
Casitas’ customers that remained within their allocation during the 2015-16 Fiscal Year. 
It is anticipated that the increased conservation penalty will provide a greater incentive 
to the small number of customers that are disregarding current allocations and State 
and local water conservation messaging during the drought.  
 
A small number of top offenders across all customer groups exceeded their allocations by 
significant margins, which represented a large portion of last year’s 757 acre-feet of water 
usage exceeding assigned allocations.  If more stringent conservation penalties were in 
place, it is anticipated that this over allocation usage would diminish. Due to low lake 
levels, all allocations have been reduced an additional 10%. Without further action to 
curtail excessive water usage, it is anticipated there could be over 1,000 acre-feet of over 
allocation usage in the current fiscal year. Raising the conservation penalty to $5 is a 
standard water demand reduction measure that has been used by other agencies to send 
a strong price signal to customers exceeding their water budgets or allocations.  
 
Table 1. FY 2015-16 data for Casitas’ residential customers with over allocation 
usage  

 
 
Table 2. FY 2015-16 data for Casitas’ annual customer with over allocation usage 

Customer 
Type 

Total 
number of 
customers 

Total 
number 

over 
allocation 

% of 
customer 
type over 
allocation 

Total Acre-
feet over 
allocation 

Top 
customer 

over 
allocatio
n in acre-

feet 

Top Ten 
customers 

over 
allocation in 

acre-feet 

Top Ten % 
of Total 

over 
allocation 

Top Ten % 
of total 

number of 
customers 

Agriculture 248 69 28% 440.6 65 257 58.30% 4.000% 
Commercial 114 45 39.50% 91.5 29 82 89.60% 8.800% 

Other 41 10 24.40% 12.1 8.4 12.1 100% 24.400% 
Industrial 9 3 33.30% 2.6 1.6    

 
 
 
 

Customer 
Type 

Total 
number of 
customers 

Total 
number 

over 
allocation 

% of 
customer 
type over 
allocation 

Total 
Acre-feet 

over 
allocation 

Top 
custom
er over 
allocati
on in 
acre-
feet 

Top Ten 
customers 

over 
allocation 

in acre-
feet 

Top Ten % 
of Total 

over 
allocation 

Top Ten % 
of total 

number of 
customers 

Residential 2,711 805 29.60% 209.9 9.4 40.8 19.40% 0.004% 



Water agencies throughout California have adopted a variety of penalties for customers 
that use over their allocation or water budget amounts during the month. The table 
below highlights some different penalty approaches. 
 
Table 3. Examples of some Water Agency Penalties across the State 
Water Agency Penalty/surcharge per unit over water 

budget/allocation 
City of Bakersfield $4.19 
Las Virgenes Muncipal Water District $4.98 
City of Santa Monica Penalty for 1st overage $250, 2nd $500, 3rd 

$1,000. 
Montecito Water District $30.00, $45.00 if more than two monthly bills 

during year. 
City of Santa Cruz $25 for first 10% over, $50 after 
Irvine Ranch Water District $3.91 for first 30% over, $6.22 for 31% to 60% 

over, and $12.60 for 61% and above  
Eastern Municipal Water District $6.30 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN INCREASED CONSERVATION PENALTY 
FOR OVER ALLOCATION WATER USAGE  

 
 WHEREAS, Casitas is currently in a Stage III drought and lake conditions are below 40%; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Over 70% of Casitas customers are adhering to their water allocation 
assignments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, A small number of customers continue to use water amounts far beyond their 
allocation; and 
 
 WHERAS, An increase in the water conservation penalty could result in nearly 1,000 acre-feet 
in additional annual water allocation savings under current drought stage reductions and that water 
savings could substantially increase during subsequent drought stages.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District as follows: 
 

1. Increase the conservation penalty for residential customers from $1 per unit to $5 per unit 
for all water usage exceeding monthly allocations. 

2. Increase the conservation penalty for all annual allocation customers from $0.25 per unit to 
$5 per unit for all water usage exceeding an annual allocation for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year.  

 
  
 
 APPROVED this ______   Day of __________, 2016 
 
       _________________________________ 
       President,  
       Casitas Municipal Water District 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary,  
Casitas Municipal Water District 























 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  August 29, 2016  
 
TO:  Recreation Committee  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for July 2016  
 
 
Visitation Numbers 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for July 2016:   
 

 July 2016 July 2015 June 2016 
Visitor Days 135,366 80,168 77,736 
Camps 12,124 10,639 7,225 
Cars 33,829 20,042 19,434 
Boats 218 244 235 
Kayaks & Canoes 1 4 21 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2015/2016 80,168 
2016/2017 135,366 
% Change 68.853 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + 
campsites occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 
Boating 
There were 12 cables sold for new inspections, 5 vessels were re-inspected and a total of 510 vessels 
were retagged for July.  Four vessels failed the first inspection in July 2016. With the historic drought 
and receding water levels the launch ramp at Santa Ana no longer could accommodate vessel launches 
and exits, so the 1961 Old Coyote ramp has been successfully put back in use.  
 
Operations 
The summer season has held up well in regards to visitation numbers in the Recreation Area in spite of 
the historic drought. The increase comparison of July 2015 and July 2016 is a steady daily increase 
without an identifiable tangible event or cause. Customers enjoy a break away from the heat and seem 
pleased with the additional time allotment for the Casitas Water Adventure late day pass even with the 
cost increase. The movie Max was screened July 9th  and the Astronomy Nights continue to attract 
customers to the free events. In preparation for the Park Ranger division, staff attended and completed 
a one week PC832 course in the Bakersfield area. Recruitment started for the Park Ranger division and 



 
 

2 

the daunting task of drafting the Park Ranger Policy Manual through Lexipol (with an expert from 
Lexipol assigned to the project). The draft was completed and is currently under review by the General 
Manager.   
     
Incidents 
Incidents in the Recreation Area for the month of July 2016 that include assistance from outside 
services: a report of a fight, an eviction for noise, a medical with chest pain, a medical with an 
unconscious person, two medicals with difficulty breathing, a medical due to an allergic reaction, 
serving a restraining order, a report of a disturbance, a report of a dispute, a report of a domestic, a 
suspicious person at the waterpark and an eviction at the waterpark.  
 
Revenue Reporting 
The 2016 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area’s revenue collected in the respective months (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per 
the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    
 
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 
    

 

$0.00
$100,000.00
$200,000.00
$300,000.00
$400,000.00
$500,000.00
$600,000.00
$700,000.00
$800,000.00

July

FY 16/17
FY 15/16

 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER  
FROM: RON MERCKLING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS/RESOURCE MANAGER  
SUBJECT: WATER CONSERVATION AUGUST 2016 UPDATE 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 7, 2016  
 
 
During the month of August 2016, the following activities were taken by the Water 
Conservation Department: 
 

• Facebook and Website updates 
• Requested and received updated Incode parameters for all water conservation staff 

to allow viewing of water waste warning and violation notices for customer accounts 
• Worked on Bureau of Reclamation payment capacity study (extensive data 

gathering required, task reassigned from engineering to water conservation 
department) 

• Provided additional criteria to software company regarding turf removal program 
• Staff worked on preparations for Regional Drought Summit 

o Developed program 
o Confirmed speaker participation 
o Confirmed location 
o Confirmed non-profit and community member participation 
o Developed advertising campaign 

 Designed flyer (360 distributed), ads, and invitations (100 sent out)  
 Social media postings 
 Started media outreach 

o Secured free rain barrel to be raffled 
o Confirmed artist showing related to drought at event 
o Working on logistics (audio/visual, presentations, refreshments, speakers and 

panelist coordination) 
• Media relations: 

o Reporters – Spoke with Gillian Ferguson, LA Times regarding agriculture 
water on August 5;  

o Met with Bill Warner, OVN on August 10, regarding Golden State Water’s 
water conservation efforts;  

o Talked with Kit Stolz, OVN on August 12 on drought; 
o Spoke with Bill Warner, OVN about new connections and water conservation 

on August 25  
• Hosted Graywater workshop on August 13, approximately 70 participants. 

 
 



• Managing Cross-connection control program, working on upgrades to program 
o BF Formal Letters (with Forms included) for Aug = 163 
o 14 re-sends via Fax or Email 
o 27 individualized incoming calls 

• State Water Resources Control Board monthly report filed 
• Continued meetings and phone calls with customers regarding allocation program 
• Seven water surveys completed 
• Safety committee participation, on committee’s communication outreach to all 

employees included developing a bulletin board in the employee lunch room. 
• Responded to 22 water waste reports. Some of these reports required site visits, 

phone calls, coordinating with other agencies, and mailings 
• Assisted with providing data for water theft case 
• August rebates: 

o 1 High Efficiency Toilet rebate 
o 1 weather based controller rebate 

• Landscape sign program – 6 signs provided in August 
• Media Advertising: 

o Facebook ad for workshop ran in the beginning part of the month 
o On August 26, ad ran in the Ojai Valley News on water conservation 

• Continued working on testing allocation beta calculator for Ojai customers 
• Attended meeting on SB 555, water loss validated AWWA audit submission 

requirements on August 2. 
• Provided DWR with requested detailed customer class water demand information 

for the California Water Plan Update 2018. 
 

 
 
 



CASITAS
LIVINGWISE® PROGRAM 
SUMMARY REPORT
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY:
RESOURCE ACTION PROGRAMS®

2015-2016



Submitted by:

July 2016

Casitas LivingWise® 
Program Summary Report
2015-2016

Made possible by:



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report2  

“This program saved money, energy 

and water we are glad to have it. 

Thank you very much.”

Bree Bullard, Parent
 Cabrillo Middle School



Resource Action Programs® 3 

Table of Contents

Executive Summary ......................................................................................5

Program Overview ........................................................................................9

Program Materials .......................................................................................11

Program Implementation ...........................................................................15

Program Team ..............................................................................................17

Program Impact ...........................................................................................19

A. Home Survey ....................................................................................19

B. Pre-Program and Post-Program Tests ..........................................20

C. Home Activities ...............................................................................21

D. Teacher Program Evaluation ..........................................................22

E. Parent/Guardian Program Evaluation ..........................................23

Appendix A ..................................................................................................26

Projected Savings from Showerhead Retrofit ...................................26

Projected Savings from Kitchen Faucet Aerator Retrofit ................27

Projected Savings from Bathroom Faucet Aerator Retrofit ............28

Projected Savings from FilterTone® Alarm Installation ....................29

Projected Savings from LED Night Light Installation .......................30

Appendix B ...................................................................................................31

Home Check-Up......................................................................................31

Home Activities ......................................................................................34

Appendix C ...................................................................................................36

Participant List .......................................................................................36

Appendix D ..................................................................................................37

Teacher Program Evaluation Data .......................................................37

Appendix E ...................................................................................................38

Parent/Guardian Program Evaluation Data ........................................38



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report4 Executive Summary

“The students loved the kits and 

really enjoyed sharing them with 

their families.”

Robin Monson, Teacher
 San Antonio Elementary School

y



Resource Action Programs® 5Executive Summary

Resource Action Programs® (RAP) is pleased to present this Program 

Summary Report to Casitas Municipal Water District, which 

summarizes the 2015-2016 Casitas LivingWise® Program. The 

program was implemented in the Casitas Municipal Water District 

service area in the state of California by 653 teachers, students, and 

their families. Funding was provided by Casitas Municipal Water 

District and Southern California Gas Company.

The following pages provide an overview of the program and 

materials, outline of program implementation, introduction to the 

program team, description of program enhancements, impact of 

the program, and summary of results from the home activities. In 

addition to this information, evaluations, letters, and comments 

are provided for a glimpse into actual participant feedback. Lastly, 

projected savings from the individual measures found within the 

LivingWise Kit are also included.

Participant Satisfaction
A successful program excites and engages participants. Students, 

parents, and teachers are asked to evaluate the program and 

provide personal comments. A sample of the feedback is given in 

the margin. 

Executive Summary

100+0+F
Teachers who indicated 

parents supported 
the program.

100%

100+0+F
Teachers who indicated 
they would recommend 

this program to 
other colleagues.

100%

100+0+F
Teachers who indicated 
they would conduct this 

program again.

100%

A summary of responses can be found 

in Appendix D.



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report6 Executive Summary

Knowledge Gained
Identical tests were administered to the students prior to the 

program and again upon program completion to measure 

knowledge gained. Scores and subject knowledge improved from  

63% to 74%.

Data Obtained
Home surveys were taken by students and their families, which 

collected household demographic and consumption data along 

with program participation information.

A summary of responses can be found in Appendix B.

50+50+F
Students who indicated 
that their family homes 
were owned.

50% 65+35+F
Students who reported 
that their home has 
a dishwasher.

65%64+36+F
Students who reported that 
their water is heated by 
natural gas.

64%

Measures Installed
Students completed take-home activities as part of the program 

and reported on the kit measures they installed in their homes.

A summary of responses can be found in Appendix B.

36+64+F
Students who reported 
they installed the High-
Efficiency Showerhead.

36% 30+70+F
Students who reported 
they installed the Kitchen 
Faucet Aerator.

30%45+55+F
Students who reported 
they installed the LED 
Night Light.

45%

_______________________100

_______________________95

_______________________90

_______________________85

_______________________80

_______________________75

_______________________70

_______________________65

_______________________60

_______________________55

_______________________50

_______________________45

_______________________40

_______________________35

_______________________30

_______________________25

_______________________20

_______________________15

_______________________10

_______________________5

_______________________0

P
re

-P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

c
o

re
 

6
3

%

P
o

st
-P

ro
g

ra
m

 S
c
o

re
 

74
%



Resource Action Programs® 7Executive Summary

Energy and Water Savings Results
In addition to educating students and their parents, a primary program goal is to generate 

cost-effective energy and water savings. Student home surveys not only provided the data 

used in the savings projections, but also reinforced the learning benefits.

Projected Resource Savings
A list of assumptions and formulas used for these calculations can be found in Appendix A.

PROJECTED ANNUAL SAVINGS

2,502,102 gallons of water saved

111,269 kWh of electricity saved

9,006 therms of gas saved 

2,502,102 gallons of wastewater saved

PROJECTED ANNUAL  
SAVINGS PER HOME

3,832 gallons of water saved

170 kWh of electricity saved

14 therms of gas saved 

3,832 gallons of wastewater saved

PROJECTED LIFETIME SAVINGS 

17,522,324 gallons of water saved

853,878 kWh of electricity saved

66,872 therms of gas saved 

17,522,324 gallons of wastewater saved

PROJECTED LIFETIME  
SAVINGS PER HOME

26,834 gallons of water saved

1,308 kWh of electricity saved

102 therms of gas saved 

26,834 gallons of wastewater saved



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report8 Program Overview

“Participants and their 

parents/guardians realize 

actual water and energy 

savings within their home, 

benefitting two generations.”



Resource Action Programs® 9Program Overview

The Casitas LivingWise® Program, a 

school-based energy efficiency education 

program, is designed to generate immediate 

and long-term resource savings by bringing 

interactive, real-world education home to 

students and their families. The 2015-2016 

program was taught in 6th grade throughout the 

Casitas Municipal Water District service area.

The Casitas LivingWise Program team identifies 

and enrolls students and teachers within the 

designated service area. The program physically 

begins with classroom discussions using a 

Student Guide that provides the foundations of 

using energy and water efficiently. It is followed 

by hands-on, creative, problem-solving activities 

led by the classroom teacher.

All program materials support state and 

national academic standards to allow the 

program to fit easily into a teacher’s existing 

curriculum and requirements. The participating 

classroom teachers follow the Teacher Book 

and lesson plan. Information is given to guide 

lessons throughout the program in order to 

satisfy each student’s individual needs, whether 

they are visual, auditory, or kinesthetic learners.

The LivingWise Kit and Student Workbook 

comprise the take-home portion of the program. 

Students receive a kit containing high-

efficiency measures they use to install within 

their homes. With the help of their parents/

guardians, students install the kit measures and 

complete a home survey. The act of installing 

and monitoring new energy efficiency devices 

in their homes allows students to put their 

learning into practice. Here, participants and 

their parents/guardians realize actual water and 

energy savings within their home, benefitting 

two generations.

A critical element of RAP program design is the 

use of new knowledge through reporting. At the 

end of the program, the Casitas program team 

tabulates all participant responses—including 

home survey information, teacher responses, 

student letters, and parent feedback—and 

generates this Program Summary Report.

Program Overview



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report10 Program Materials

“For more than 23 years, Resource 

Action Programs (RAP) has designed 

and implemented Measure-Based 

Education® programs that inspire 

change in household energy and 

water use while delivering significant, 

measurable resource savings.”



Resource Action Programs® 11Program Materials

Each participant in the Casitas LivingWise® Program receives classroom materials and energy 

efficiency kits containing high-efficiency measures to perform the program’s take-home activities. 

Program materials for students, parents/guardians, and teachers are outlined below.

Program Materials

Each Student & Teacher Receives

Student Guide

Student Workbook

Parent Letter*

Student Survey Form 

Certificate of Achievement

LivingWise Kit Containing:

• High-Efficiency Showerhead*

• LED Night Light

• Kitchen Faucet Aerator*

• Bathroom Faucet Aerator*

• Rain/Drip Gauge*

• FilterTone® Alarm*

• Digital Thermometer*

• Toilet Leak Detector Tablets

• Flow Rate Test Bag

• Mini Tape Measure

• Parent/Guardian Program Evaluation

“GetWise” Wristband

Program Website Access at Getwise.org

Toll-Free HELP Line

Each Teacher/Classroom Receives

Teacher Book

Step-by-Step Program Checklist

Lesson Plans

California State and National Academic 

 Standards Chart

Teacher Program Evaluation

Pre/Post Student Survey Answer Keys

Electricity, Water, and Natural Gas Posters

Self-Addressed Postage-Paid Envelope

* Materials / Installation Instructions provided in English and Spanish



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report12 Program Materials

Custom Branding 
In addition to increasing resource awareness and efficiency, the 

program has been designed to strengthen bonds between Casitas 

Municipal Water District and the community. One of the steps 

taken to ensure the greatest possible exposure is to feature the 

Casitas Municipal Water District branding with Southern California 

Gas Company’s custom design and color scheme throughout 

each LivingWise Kit. In addition to the kit, the Teacher Program 

Evaluation and Parent/Guardian Introduction Letter also feature 

Casitas Municipal Water District branding.

_______________________100

_______________________95

_______________________90

_______________________85

_______________________80

_______________________75

_______________________70

_______________________65

_______________________60

_______________________55

_______________________50

_______________________45

_______________________40

_______________________35

_______________________30

_______________________25

_______________________20

_______________________15

_______________________10

_______________________5

_______________________0

Te
a
c
h

e
rs

 w
h

o
 l

ik
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 

10
0

%

P
a
re

n
ts

 w
h

o
 l

ik
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 

10
0

%



Resource Action Programs® 13Program Materials

Program Materials 

WWW.GETWISE.ORG

FOR MORE INFORMATION, FUN ACTIVITIES AND EXCITING

NEW GAMES BE SURE TO VISIT US ONLINE TODAY AT

Questions? Call or go online today!

WWW.GETWISE.ORG
1-888-GET-WISE

©2015 Resource Action Programs®

®®

STUDENT GUIDE

111839

111839 STU SCESCG Student Guide Cover 1215_PRINT.pdf   1   12/8/15   8:12 AM

Questions? Call or go online today!

WWW.GETWISE.ORG
1-888-GET-WISE

©2015 Resource Action Programs®

STUDENT WORKBOOK

111849

111849 STU SCESCG Student Workbook Cover 1215_PRINT.pdf   1   12/8/15   8:16 AM

®

PROGRAM EVALUATION
In an effort to improve our program, we would like your assessment of the LivingWise® Program. Please  
take a few moments to fill out this evaluation form. Upon completion, please return the form in the self- 
addressed return envelope along with the results you collected. Don’t forget to enroll for next year using the 
form on the back of this sheet.

School: _______________________________________________

Teacher: ______________________________________________

E-mail: ______________________________________________

Please check the box that best describes your opinion:

1. The materials were attractive and easy to use. p	 p	 p	 p 

2. The materials and activities were well received by students. p	 p	 p	 p 

3. The materials were clearly written and well organized. p	 p	 p	 p

4. The conservation tools inside the kit were easy for students to use. p	 p	 p	 p

5. Students indicated that their parents supported the program. p	 p	 p	 p

6. If you had the opportunity, would you conduct this program again? p	YES	 	 p	NO

7. Would you recommend this program to other colleagues? p	YES	 	 p	NO

In my opinion, the thing the students like best about the materials/program was:

In the future, one thing I would change would be:

 STRONGLY AGREE DISAGREE STRONGLY
 AGREE   DISAGREE

Total number of students participating in the program:______________________________________________________________

Total number of Survey forms returned:___________________________________________________________________________

Teacher Signature:________________________________________________________  Date:______________________________

PLEASE SIGN BELOW

The LivingWise program is jointly funded by Casitas Municipal Water District and California utility customers. The program is administered by SoCalGas, 
under the auspices of the California Public Utilities Commission, and Casitas Municipal Water District through a contract awarded to Resource Action 
Programs. California customers who choose to participate in this program are not obligated to purchase any additional services offered by the contractor. 
The trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners. Casitas Municipal Water District and SoCalGas make no warranty, whether 
express or implied, including warranty of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose, use or application of selected goods and services.

1548

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

for making a difference in your community
by successfully completing the LivingWise® program.

®®

XXXX

Diane Sumner, Ed.D., Director of Education

Teacher BookStudent Guide Student Workbook

Teacher Evaluation Form

Certificate of Achievement Kit Box

FOR MORE INFORMATION, FUN ACTIVITIES 
OR HELP IMPLEMENTING THE PROGRAM, BE 
SURE TO VISIT US ONLINE TODAY!

WWW.GETWISE.ORG

Questions? Call or go online today!

WWW.GETWISE.ORG
(888)GET-WISE

©2015 Resource Action Programs®

®®

TEACHER BOOK
N30205 1015 0000

1
5

3

46

1
5

32
4

6

2

Box Contents
1  Rain/Drip Gauge
2  High-Efficiency Showerhead*
3  LED Night Light
4  Bathroom Faucet Aerator*
5  Kitchen Faucet Aerator*
6  FilterTone® Alarm*

*Denotes item installation should be performed by an adult.

PROUDLY SPONSORED BY:

®®

Need help? Visit WWW.GETWISE.ORG or call our TOLL FREE help line at 1.888.GET.WISE

The LivingWise program is jointly funded by Casitas Municipal Water District and California utility customers. The program is administered by SoCalGas, under the auspices of the California Public 
Utilities Commission, and Casitas Municipal Water District through a contract awarded to Resource Action Programs. California customers who choose to participate in this program are not obligated 
to purchase any additional services offered by the contractor. The trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners. Casitas Municipal Water District and SoCalGas make no 
warranty, whether express or implied, including warranty of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose, use or application of selected goods and services.

1548

Remove cardboard insert to locate these items below:

 Mini Tape Measure
 Digital Thermometer
 Flow Rate Test Bag
 Toilet Leak Detector Tablets*
 Teflon Tape
 Installation Instructions
 Reminder Stickers
 Parent/Guardian Program Evaluation

Kit Label

Parent Letter

WWW.GETWISE.ORG     RESOURCE ACTION PROGRAMS®                  888-GET-WISE

®

ATTN: PARENTS

Congratulations!

Your child has been selected to participate in the exciting LivingWise® Resource Action Program! Due to the 
generosity of Casitas Municipal Water District and SoCalGas, this program is being provided to your child’s 
school at NO COST. Your child will be learning easy ways to use water and energy more efficiently in your 
home.  Improving your home efficiency will help YOU save money on your home utility bills! However, the 
success of the program will depend on your involvement and support.  

Here are a few key aspects of the program and ways you can help:

 •  Your child will be given a LivingWise Kit, which includes high quality, high performance products that 
utilize the latest efficiency technology. This kit is valued at over $50.00, and you can find many of the 
products at retailers such as Bed Bath and Beyond® and Camping World®. Please help your child 
install these products in your home as not every person has the chance to receive this kit free of 
charge.

 •  Your child will receive homework assignments to go with the classroom instruction, which include 
studying the water and energy use in your home. These projects are designed to highlight the 
potential benefits of switching to the new, high quality, high performance products that have 
been provided in the kit. Some of the activities will require your assistance or supervision.  All 
materials and instructions are provided, and additional program support can be obtained from 
your child’s teacher or by calling the Resource Action Programs Information Center toll-free 
at 1-888-GET-WISE. 

 •  Help your child fill out the survey questions in the provided Student Workbook. This will help you and 
your child realize how much energy you are saving as a family!

 •  The Resource Action Team, Casitas Municipal Water District and SoCalGas would love to hear 
from you. Once you and your child have completed the program, please take a moment to fill out the 
yellow parent survey card inside the kit. When you’re done, just drop it into your mail box - we’ll take 
care of the postage!

The LivingWise program will be a positive experience for your entire family. Not only will it allow your child the 
chance to be a leader in your home and community, but also your family can benefit from lower utility bills!  
Thank you for your participation, and thank you to the sponsors for making this program available. 

Remember, You Can Make A Difference!

The LivingWise program is jointly funded by Casitas Municipal Water District and California utility customers. The program is administered by 
SoCalGas, under the auspices of the California Public Utilities Commission, and Casitas Municipal Water District through a contract awarded to 
Resource Action Programs. California customers who choose to participate in this program are not obligated to purchase any additional services 
offered by the contractor. The trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners. Casitas Municipal Water District and SoCalGas 
make no warranty, whether express or implied, including warranty of merchantability or fi tness for any particular purpose, use or application of 
selected goods and services.

©
 2

01
5 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
s



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report14 Program Implementation

“We love this!! Hands-on learning and 

conserving all in one! Two thumbs up.”

Emily Drew, Parent
 Cabrillo Middle School



Resource Action Programs® 15Program Implementation

The 2015-2016 Casitas LivingWise® Program followed this comprehensive implementation schedule:

1. Identification of California state and national academic standards & benchmarks 

2. Curriculum development and refinement (completed annually)

3. Curriculum correlation to California state and national academic standards & benchmarks

4. Materials modification to incorporate Southern California Gas Company and Casitas Municipal 

Water District branding

5. Incentive program development

6. Teacher/school identification—with Southern California Gas Company and Casitas Municipal 

Water District approval

7. Teacher outreach and program introduction

8. Teachers enrolled in the program individually

9. Implementation dates scheduled with teachers

10. Program material delivered to coincide with desired implementation date

11. Delivery confirmation

12. Periodic contact to ensure implementation and teacher satisfaction

13. Program completion incentive offered

14. Results collection

15. Program completion incentive delivered to qualifying teachers

16. Thank you cards sent to participating teachers

17. Data analysis

18. Program Summary Report generated and distributed

Participating teachers are free to implement the program to coincide with their lesson plans and class 

schedules. Appendix C provides a comprehensive list of classrooms in grade 6 that participated during 

the 2015-2016 school year.

Program Implementation



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report16 Program Team

For more than 23 years, Resource Action Programs (RAP) has 

designed and implemented Measure-Based Education® programs 

that inspire change in household energy and water use while 

delivering significant, measurable resource savings. All RAP 

programs feature a proven blend of innovative education, 

comprehensive implementation services, and hands-on activities 

to put efficiency knowledge to work in students’ homes.

RAP has a strong reputation for providing a high level of client 

service as part of a wide range of energy efficiency education 

solutions for utilities, municipalities, states, community agencies, 

corporations, and more. In 2013, RAP was the only conservation 

services provider honored by the American Council for an 

Energy-Efficient Economy (ACEEE) and the Alliance for Water 

Efficiency (AWE) as one of 12 top programs that provides sustained 

achievement. RAP was honored for market penetration, innovative 

design, and its ability to achieve substantial/sustained energy and 

water savings.



Resource Action Programs® 17Program Team

RAP implements nearly 300 individual programs 

that serve more than 400,000 households each 

year. All-inclusive program delivery occurs in 

its 80,000 square-foot Nevada Program Center 

where implementation teams and support 

departments work together to provide:

• 1:1 teacher support

• Curriculum development

• Customized materials

• Data tracking and reporting

• Energy and water efficiency measures

• Graphic and web design

• Kit assembly

• Marketing communications

• Shipping

• Printing

• Program management

• Participant enrollment

• Warehousing

The Implementation Team
For the Casitas LivingWise® Program, RAP 

assigned a specific implementation team 

to Casitas Municipal Water District made 

up of a PMP®-designated Program Manager, 

CEM®-designated energy analyst, graphic 

designer, outreach personnel, educator, and 

administrative staff. This team immersed 

themselves into the Casitas Municipal Water 

District brand, and handled all program 

implementation for Casitas Municipal Water 

District. Casitas Municipal Water District 

also received the benefit of fully staffed 

support departments, which worked with 

the implementation team to define success 

for Casitas Municipal Water District. These 

departments include education, marketing, 

information technology, and warehouse/

logistics.

Continuous Improvement
In addition to successful implementation of the 

Casitas LivingWise Program, RAP engages in 

continuous program improvement, as well as 

enhancements to educational materials, with 

modifications based on emerging technology, 

industry trends, and EM&V findings.

As part of this plan, RAP utilizes an extensive 

network of educators for program feedback. This 

feedback ensures that educational components 

meet the changing needs of educators, keep 

information relevant to students, and, in turn, 

provide increased water and energy literacy 

amongst program participants.

Program Team



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report18 Program Impact

“Upon completion of the program, 

participating families are asked to 

complete a home survey to assess 

their resource use, verify product 

installation, provide demographic 

information, and measure 

participation rates.”



Resource Action Programs® 19Program Impact

The Casitas LivingWise® Program has had a significant impact within the community. As illustrated 

below, the program successfully educated participants about energy and water efficiency while 

generating resource savings through the installation of efficiency measures in homes. Home survey 

information was collected to track projected savings and provide household consumption and 

demographic data. Program evaluations and comments were collected from teachers, students, 

and parents.

A. Home Survey
Upon completion of the program, participating families are asked to complete a home survey to 

assess their resource use, verify product installation, provide demographic information, and measure 

participation rates. A few samples of questions asked are below while a complete summary of all 

responses is included in the appendices.

Did you work with your family on this program? Yes - 61%

Did your family change the way they use water? Yes - 68%

Did your family change the way they use energy? Yes - 64%

Program Impact

61+39+F
Students who indicated that they worked 
with their family on this program.

61% Yes

39% No 68+32+F
Students who indicated their family 
changed the way they use water.

68% Yes

32% No 64+36+F
Students who indicated their family 
changed the way they use energy.

64% Yes

36% No



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report20 Program Impact

B. Pre-Program and Post-Program Tests
Students were asked to complete a 10-question test before the program was introduced and then again 

after it was completed to determine the knowledge gained through the program. The average student 

answered 6.3 questions correctly prior to being involved in the program and then improved to answer 

7.4 questions correctly following participation.

Scores improved from 63% to 74%.

Pre-Program Score 63%

Post-Program Score 74%

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 100



Resource Action Programs® 21Program Impact

C. Home Activities
As part of the program, parents and students installed resource efficiency measures in their homes. 

They also measured the pre-existing devices to calculate savings that they generated. Using the family 

habits collected from the home survey as the basis for this calculation, 653 households are expected 

to save the following resource totals. Savings from these actions and new behaviors will continue for 

many years to come.

Projected Resource Savings
A list of assumptions and formulas used for these calculations can be found in Appendix A.

Number of Participants: 653

Annual Lifetime

Projected reduction from Showerhead retrofit: 1,002,363 10,023,627 gallons

Product Life: 10 years 47,895 478,947 kWh

4,191 41,908 therms

Projected reduction from Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit: 743,280 3,716,401 gallons

Product Life: 5 years 25,654 128,270 kWh

2,298 11,492 therms

Projected reduction from Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit: 756,459 3,782,296 gallons

Product Life: 5 years 26,109 130,544 kWh

2,339 11,696 therms

Projected reduction from LED Night Light installation: 8,414 84,140 kWh

Product Life: 10,000 hours

Projected reduction from FilterTone® installation: 3,198 31,977 kWh

Product Life: 10 years 178 1,777 therms

TOTAL PROGRAM SAVINGS: 2,502,102 17,522,324 gallons

111,269 853,878 kWh

9,006 66,872 therms

TOTAL PROGRAM SAVINGS PER HOUSEHOLD:  3,832  26,834 gallons

 170  1,308 kWh

 14  102 therms



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report22 Program Impact

D. Teacher Program Evaluation
Program improvements are based on participant feedback received. One of the types of feedback 

obtained is from participating teachers via a Teacher Program Evaluation Form. They are asked to 

evaluate relevant aspects of the program and each response is reviewed for pertinent information. The 

following is feedback from the Teacher Program Evaluation for the Casitas LivingWise Program.

Teacher Response
(A summary of responses can be found in Appendix D)

100%  of participating teachers indicated they would conduct the program again given the opportunity.

100%  of participating teachers indicated they would recommend the program to their colleagues.

In my opinion, the thing the students like best about the program/materials is:

“The kit items.”

Peter Dibble, Cabrillo Middle School

“The students loved the kits and really enjoyed sharing them with their families.”

Robin Monson, San Antonio Elementary School

In the future, one thing I would change would be:

“It would be helpful to have guided reading questions for students to accompany the student guide.”

Peter Dibble, Cabrillo Middle School

“All materials would be in English and Spanish. It was really hard for my students to complete activities at home 

when parents only speak Spanish.”

Elizabeth Linscheid, De Anza Academy

“Maybe keep the night light and light bulb.”

Robin Monson, San Antonio Elementary School



Resource Action Programs® 23Program Impact

E. Parent/Guardian Program Evaluation
Parent involvement with program activities and their children is of paramount interest to both utilities 

and teachers in the program. When parents take an active role in their child’s education it helps the 

schools and strengthens the educational process considerably. When students successfully engage 

their families in retrofit, installation, and home energy efficiency projects, efficiency messages are 

powerfully delivered to two generations in the same household. The program is a catalyst for this 

family interaction, which is demonstrated by feedback from Parent/Guardian Program Evaluations in 

each program. The following is feedback from the Parent/Guardian Program Evaluations for the Casitas 

LivingWise Program.

Parent Response
(A summary of responses can be found in Appendix E)

100%  of participating parents indicated that the program was easy to use.

100%  of participating parents indicated they would continue to use the kit items after the completion 

of the program.

100%  of participating parents indicated they would like to see this program continued in local schools.

What comments would you like to express to your child’s program sponsor?

“Thanks for making these available.”

Anonymous Parent, Cabrillo Middle School

“Overall it was a great learning experience for our family.”

A. Ready, Cabrillo Middle School

“This program saved money, energy and water we are glad to have it. Thank you very much.”

Bree Bullard, Cabrillo Middle School

“We love this!! Hands-on learning and conserving all in one! Two thumbs up.”

Emily Drew, Cabrillo Middle School



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report24 Appendices

“Overall it was a great learning 

experience for our family.”

A. Ready, Parent
 Cabrillo Middle School



Resource Action Programs® 25Appendices

Appendix A

Projected Savings from Showerhead Retrofit .................................. 26

Projected Savings from Kitchen Faucet Aerator Retrofit ................27

Projected Savings from Bathroom Faucet Aerator Retrofit ........... 28

Projected Savings from FilterTone® Alarm Installation ................... 29

Projected Savings from LED Night Light Installation ...................... 30

Appendix B

Home Check-Up .....................................................................................31

Home Activities ..................................................................................... 34

Appendix C

Participant List ...................................................................................... 36

Appendix D

Teacher Program Evaluation Data .......................................................37

Appendix E

Parent/Guardian Program Evaluation Data ...................................... 38

Appendices



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report26 Appendix A

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

Showerhead retrofit inputs and assumptions:

Average household size: 4.65 people1

Average number of full bathrooms per home: 1.85 full bathrooms per home1

% of water heated by gas: 63.64% 1

% of water heated by electricity: 36.36% 1

Installation / participation rate of: 35.74% 1

Average Showerhead has a flow rate of: 1.92 gallons per minute1

Retrofit Showerhead has flow rate of: 1.07 gallons per minute1

Number of participants:  653 1

Shower duration: 8.20 minutes per day2

Showers per day per person: 0.67 showers per day2

Product life: 10.00 years3

Projected Water Savings:

Showerhead retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 1,002,363 gallons4

Showerhead retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 10,023,627 gallons5

Projected Electricity Savings:

Showerhead retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 47,895 kWh2,6

Showerhead retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 478,947 kWh2,7

Projected Natural Gas Savings:

Showerhead retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 4,191 therms2,8

Showerhead retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 41,908 therms2,9

1 Data Reported by Program Participants.

2 (March 4, 2010). EPA WaterSense® Specification for Showerheads Supporting Statement. Retrieved from http://www.epa.gov/WaterSense/docs/showerheads_

finalsuppstat508.pdf

3 Provided by manufacturer.

4 [(Average Household Size x Shower Duration x Showers per Day per Person) ÷ Average Number of Full Bathrooms per Home] x (Average Showerhead Flow Rate  - Retrofit 

Showerhead Flow Rate ) x Number of Participants x Installation Rate x 365 days

5 [(Average Household Size x Shower Duration x Showers per Day per Person) ÷ Average Number of Full Bathrooms per Home] x (Average Showerhead Flow Rate  - Retrofit 

Showerhead Flow Rate ) x Number of Participants x Installation Rate x 365 days x Product Life

6 Projected Annual Water Savings x Percent of Water that is Hot Water x 0.18 kWh/gal x % of Water Heated by Electricity

7 Projected Annual Water Savings x Percent of Water that is Hot Water x 0.18 kWh/gal x % of Water Heated by Electricity x Product Life

8 Projected Annual Water Savings x Percent of Water that is Hot Water x 0.009 Therms/gal x % of Water Heated by Natural Gas

9 Projected Annual Water Savings x Percent of Water that is Hot Water x 0.009 Therms/gal x % of Water Heated by Natural Gas x Product Life

Projected Savings from Showerhead Retrofit



Resource Action Programs® 27Appendix A

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit inputs and assumptions:

Average household size:  4.65 people1

% of homes with a dishwasher: 64.71% 1

% of homes without a dishwasher: 35.29% 1

% of water heated by gas: 63.64% 1

% of water heated by electricity: 36.36% 1

Installation / participation rate of: 30.04% 1

Number of participants:  653 1

Average Kitchen Faucet Aerator has a flow rate of: 2.50 gallons per minute2

Retrofit Kitchen Faucet Aerator has flow rate of: 1.50 gallons per minute3

Product life: 5.00 years3

Length of use without dishwasher: 15.00 minutes per day4

Length of use without dishwasher (each family member): 1.00 minute per day4

Length of use with dishwasher: 3.00 minutes per day4

Length of use with dishwasher (each family member): 0.50 minutes per day4

Projected Water Savings:

Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 743,280 gallons5

Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 3,716,401 gallons6

Projected Electricity Savings:

Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 25,654 kWh4,7

Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 128,270 kWh4,8

Projected Natural Gas Savings:

Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 2,298 therms4,9

Kitchen Faucet Aerator retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 11,492 therms4,10

1 Data Reported by Program Participants.

2 Vickers, Amy (2002). Water Use and Conservation. Amherst, MA: WaterPlow Press.

3 Provided by manufacturer.

4 Quantec, LLC. (2008). Impact of Flipping the Switch: Evaluating the Effectiveness of Low Income Residential Energy Education Programs. Portland: Drakos, Jamie et al.

5 {Length of use without dishwasher + [Average household size x Length of use without dishwasher (each family member))] x % of homes without dishwasher} + {Length of 

use with dishwasher + [Average household size x Length of use with dishwasher (each family member))] x % of homes with dishwasher} x [Average Kitchen Aerator flow 

rate – Retrofit Kitchen Aerator flow rate] x Number of participants x Installation rate x 365 days

6 {Length of use without dishwasher + [Average household size x Length of use without dishwasher (each family member))] x % of homes without dishwasher} + {Length of 

use with dishwasher + [Average household size x Length of use with dishwasher (each family member))] x % of homes with dishwasher} x [Average Kitchen Aerator flow 

rate – Retrofit Kitchen Aerator flow rate] x Number of participants x Installation rate x 365 days x Product Life

7 Projected Annual Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (3413 x water heater efficiency (0.90)] x % of Water Heated by Electricity

8 Projected Lifetime Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (3413 x water heater efficiency (0.90)] x % of Water Heated by Electricity

9 Projected Annual Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (100,000 x water heater efficiency (0.60)] x % of Water Heated by Natural Gas

10 Projected Lifetime Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (100,000 x water heater efficiency (0.60)] x % of Water Heated by Natural Gas

Projected Savings from Kitchen Faucet Aerator Retrofit



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report28 Appendix A

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit inputs and assumptions:

Average household size: 4.65 people1

% of water heated by gas: 63.64% 1

% of water heated by electricity: 36.36% 1

Installation / participation rate of: 30.34% 1

Number of participants:  653 1

Average Bathroom Faucet Aerator has a flow rate of: 2.50 gallons per minute2

Retrofit Bathroom Faucet Aerator has flow rate of: 1.00 gallons per minute3

Product life: 5.00 years3

Length of use (per family member): 1.50 minutes per day4

Projected Water Savings:

Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 756,459 gallons5

Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 3,782,296 gallons6

Projected Electricity Savings:

Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 26,109 kWh4,7

Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 130,544 kWh4,8

Projected Natural Gas Savings:

Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit projects an annual reduction of: 2,339 therms4,9

Bathroom Faucet Aerator retrofit projects a lifetime reduction of: 11,696 therms4,10

1 Data Reported by Program Participants.

2 Vickers, Amy (2002). Water Use and Conservation. Amherst, MA: WaterPlow Press.

3 Provided by manufacturer.

4 Quantec, LLC. (2008). Impact of Flipping the Switch: Evaluating the Effectiveness of Low Income Residential Energy Education Programs. Portland: Drakos, Jamie et al.

5 [Length of use (each family member) x Average household size] x [Average Bathroom Aerator flow rate – Retrofit Bathroom Aerator flow rate] x Number of participants x 

Installation rate x 365 days

6 [Length of use (each family member) x Average household size] x [Average Bathroom Aerator flow rate – Retrofit Bathroom Aerator flow rate] x Number of participants x 

Installation rate x 365 days x Product Life

7 Projected Annual Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (3413 x water heater efficiency (0.90)] x % of Water Heated by Electricity

8 Projected Lifetime Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (3413 x water heater efficiency (0.90)] x % of Water Heated by Electricity

9 Projected Annual Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (100,000 x water heater efficiency (0.60)] x % of Water Heated by Natural Gas

10 Projected Lifetime Water Savings x [(8.33lbs. / gallon x 35°FΔT) ÷ (100,000 x water heater efficiency (0.60)] x % of Water Heated by Natural Gas

Projected Savings from Bathroom Faucet Aerator Retrofit



Resource Action Programs® 29Appendix A

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

FilterTone® installation inputs and assumptions:

Annual energy (electricity) use by a central system air conditioner: 1,637 kWh1

Annual energy (natural gas) use by central space heating or furnace: 173 therms1

Projected increase in efficiency (electricity): 1.75% 2

Projected increase in efficiency (natural gas): 0.92% 2

Product life: 10 years3

Installation / participation rate of: 17% 4

Number of participants: 653 4

Projected Electricity Savings:

The FilterTone installation projects an annual reduction of: 3,198 kWh5

The FilterTone installation projects a lifetime reduction of: 31,977 kWh6

Projected Natural Gas Savings:

The FilterTone installation projects an annual reduction of: 178 therms7

The FilterTone installation projects a lifetime reduction of: 1,777 therms8

1 U.S. Department of Energy, Energy Information Administration 2005 Residential Energy Consumption Web site for California: http://www.eia.gov/consumption/

residential/data/2005/

2 Reichmuth P.E., Howard. (1999). Engineering Review and Savings Estimates for the ‘Filtertone’ Filter Restriction Alarm.

3 Provided by manufacturer.

4 Data reported by program participants.

5 Annual energy (electricity) use by a central air conditioner, heat pump or furnace x Projected increase in efficiency (electricity) x Installation rate x Number of participants

6 Annual energy (electricity) use by a central air conditioner, heat pump or furnace x Projected increase in efficiency (electricity) x  Installation rate x Number of participants 

x Product life

7 Annual energy (natural gas) use by a central air conditioner, heat pump or furnace x Projected increase in efficiency (natural gas) x Installation rate x Number of 

participants

8 Annual energy (natural gas) use by a central air conditioner, heat pump or furnace x Projected increase in efficiency (natural gas) x Installation rate x Number of 

participants x Product life

Projected Savings from FilterTone® Alarm Installation



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report30 Appendix A

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

Energy Efficient Night Light installation inputs and assumptions:

Average length of use:  4,380 hours per year1

Average night light uses: 7 watts

Retrofit night light uses: 0.5 watts

Product life: 10 years2

Energy saved per year: 28 kWh per year

Energy saved over life expectancy: 285 kWh

Installation / participation rate of: 45.26% 3

Number of participants: 653 3

Projected Electricity Savings:

The Energy Efficient Night Light installation projects an annual reduction of: 8,414 kWh

The Energy Efficient Night Light installation projects a lifetime reduction of: 84,140 kWh

1 Assumption (12 hours per day)

2 Product life provided by manufacturer

3 Data reported by program participants

Projected Savings from LED Night Light Installation



Resource Action Programs® 31Appendix B

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

1 What type of home do you live in?

Single Family home 66%

Multi-Family (2-4 units) 21%

Multi-Family (5-20 units) 7%

Multi-Family (21+ units) 6%

2 Was your home built before 1992?

Yes 63%

No 37%

3 Is your home owned or rented?

Owned 50%

Rented 50%

4 How many kids live in your home (age 0-17)?

1 20%

2 43%

3 22%

4 11%

5+ 5%

5 How many adults live in your home (age 18+)?

1 12%

2 64%

3 13%

4 6%

5+ 4%

6 What is the main source of heating in your home?

Natural Gas 40%

Electric Heater 42%

Propane 5%

Heating Oil 1%

Wood 4%

Other 8%

Home Check-Up

Due to rounding of numbers, percentages may not add up to 100%



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report32 Appendix B

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

7 Does your home have a programmable thermostat?

Yes 64%

No 36%

8 Does your home have a dishwasher?

Yes 65%

No 35%

9 How many half-bathrooms are in your home?

0 65%

1 30%

2 3%

3 1%

4+ 1%

10 How many full bathrooms are in your home?

1 36%

2 48%

3 13%

4 2%

5 2%

11 How many toilets are in your home?

1 28%

2 40%

3 24%

4 6%

5+ 2%

12 How is your water heated?

Natural Gas 64%

Electricity 36%

Home Check-Up 
(continued)

Due to rounding of numbers, percentages may not add up to 100%



Resource Action Programs® 33Appendix B

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

13 How many incandescent bulbs (non CFL's) are in your home?

1 11%

2 2%

3 4%

4 4%

5 3%

6 6%

7 3%
8 5%
9 1%
10 5%
11 3%
12 6%
13 3%
14 0%
15 2%
16 4%
17 3%
18 3%
19 3%
20 3%
21 1%
22 3%
23 0%
24+ 18%

Home Check-Up 
(continued)

Due to rounding of numbers, percentages may not add up to 100%



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report34 Appendix B

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

1 What was the flow rate of your old showerhead?

0 - 1.0 GPM 14%

1.1 - 1.5 GPM 20%

1.6 - 2.0 GPM 20%

2.1 - 2.5 GPM 25%

2.6 - 3.0 GPM 14%

3.1+ GPM 8%

2 Did you install the new High-Efficiency Showerhead?

Yes 36%

No 64%

3 If you answered "yes" to question 2, what is the flow rate of your new showerhead?

0 - 1.0 GPM 29%

1.1 - 1.5 GPM 71%

1.6 - 2.0 GPM 0%

4 Did your family lower your water heater settings?

Yes 30%

No 70%

5 Did your family install the Bathroom Faucet Aerator?

Yes 30%

No 70%

6 Did your family install the Kitchen Faucet Aerator?

Yes 30%

No 70%

7 Did your home have any water leaks?

Yes 27%

No 73%

8 Did your family raise the temperature in your refrigerator?

Yes 20%

No 80%

9 How much did your family turn down the thermostat in winter for heating?

1 - 2 Degrees 13%

3 - 4 Degrees 18%

5+ Degrees 9%

Didn't Adjust Thermostat 59%

Home Activities

Due to rounding of numbers, percentages may not add up to 100%



Resource Action Programs® 35Appendix B

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

10 How much did your family turn up the thermostat in summer for cooling?

1 - 2 Degrees 9%

3 - 4 Degrees 16%

5+ Degrees 9%

Didn't Adjust Thermostat 66%

11 Did your family install the FilterTone® Alarm?

Yes 17%

No 83%

12 Did your family install the LED Night Light?

Yes 45%

No 55%

13 Was your toilet leaking?

Yes 17%

No 83%

14 How many gallons per flush (gpf) is your toilet?

5+ gpf 24%

3.5-4.9 gpf 22%

1.6-3.49 gpf 28%

1.28-1.59 gpf 19%

<1.28 7%

15 Did your family change the way they water outdoors?

Yes 52%

No 48%

16 Did you work with your family on this Program?

Yes 61%

No 39%

17 Did your family change the way they use water?

Yes 68%

No 32%

18 Did your family change the way they use energy?

Yes 64%

No 36%

Home Activities 
(continued)

Due to rounding of numbers, percentages may not add up to 100%



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report36 Appendix C

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

SCHOOL NAME TEACHER NAME T S

Cabrillo Middle School Peter Dibble 1 70

Cabrillo Middle School Isabel O’Higgins 1 72

Cabrillo Middle School Cynthia Powell 1 45

Cabrillo Middle School Martha Lennox 1 120

De Anza Academy Eva Cherrie 1 105

De Anza Academy Elizabeth Linscheid 1 70

Meiners Oaks Elementary School Kevin White 1 32

Meiners Oaks Elementary School Sandra Hansen 1 32

Mira Monte Elementary School Kimari Foote 1 66

San Antonio Elementary School Robin Monson 1 31

TOTALS 10 643

TOTAL PARTICIPANTS 653

Participant List

Note: “T” represents number of teachers and “S” represents number of students



Resource Action Programs® 37Appendix D

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

1 The materials were attractive and easy to use.

Strongly Agree 33%

Agree 67%

Disagree 0%

Strongly Disagree 0%

2 The materials and activities were well received by students.

Strongly Agree 33%

Agree 67%

Disagree 0%

Strongly Disagree 0%

3 The materials were clearly written and well organized.

Strongly Agree 33%

Agree 67%

Disagree 0%

Strongly Disagree 0%

4 The conservation technologies were easy for students to use.

Strongly Agree 0%

Agree 100%

Disagree 0%

Strongly Disagree 0%

5 Students indicated that their parents supported the program.

Strongly Agree 33%

Agree 67%

Disagree 0%

Strongly Disagree 0%

6 If you had the opportunity, would you conduct this program again?

Yes 100%

No 0%

7 Would you recommend this program to other colleagues?

Yes 100%

No 0%

Teacher Program Evaluation Data

Due to rounding of numbers, percentages may not add up to 100%



Casitas LivingWise® Program Summary Report38 Appendix E

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 E Parent/Guardian Program Evaluation Data

1 Was the Program easy for you and your child to use?

Yes 100%

No 0%

2 Will you continue to use the Kit items after the completion of the Program?

Yes 100%

No 0%

3 Would you like to see this Program continued in local schools?

Yes 100%

No 0%

Due to rounding of numbers, percentages may not add up to 100%



©2016 Resource Action Programs



976 United Circle • Sparks, NV 89431
www.resourceaction.com • (888)438-9473

©2016 Resource Action Programs®



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:    September 8, 2016 
TO:       Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Water Resources Committee Meeting of August 23, 2016, 9:30 AM 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks 
Director Russ Baggerly 

 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Resources Manager, Ron Merckling 
 
 Public –  Randy Haney, William Weirick, Angelo Spandrio, Bill Warner, Jim Kentosh  
  

2. Public Comments.  
Mr. Spandrio expressed concern over potential siltation in Lake Casitas and asked if Casitas 
had plans to perform a siltation study. 

 
3. Board Comments. 

Director Hicks asked about the construction tank trucks that have been taking water from a fire 
hydrant in front of the Rincon Fire Station. 
 

4. Manager Comments. 
The General Manager addressed Mr. Spandrio’s question, a silt survey is not scheduled at this 
time – cost and accuracy of a survey. 
 
The General Manager addressed Director Hicks’ question – a temporary meter is attached to 
the named fire hydrant, from which the contractor is metered and charged for water use.  

 
5. Discussion regarding new water resources reconnaissance. 

The General Manager informed the Committee that Water Resources Engineering Associates 
has provided a scope of work for the water security study.  This item will be moved to the 
Board for approval of the purchase order contract. 
 
Mr. Weirick requested that Ojai land use planning guidelines for orderly development be 
considered and the City of Ojai be a part of the process for review and discussion. 
 

6. Review of Annual Water Education Performance Report. 
Ron Merckling presented the Report that indicated a 54 acre-foot annual water savings as a 
result of the educational program.  A survey of the students indicated that approximately 70 



 2 

percent of students have low-flush toilets in the household. 
 
 

7. Discussion regarding water use reporting to the State Water Resources Control Board. 
Ron Merckling informed the Committee that the District has been approved for self-certification 
of water conservation reporting. 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes 

 
 
DATE:  September 8, 2016 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of August 26, 2016 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.       

Directors Peter Kaiser and Russ Baggerly 
  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
  Ron Merckling, Resources Manager 
    

Public – Diana Goodrow, Kathy Bennett, Kale Starbird, Julie Smith 
 

2. Public Comments.   
The members of the public each expressed interest in the District, on-going drought 
conditions, and actions being taken by Casitas and local citizens. 

 
3. Board/Manager comments.    

It has been brought to the attention of the General Manager that the Safety Officer 
desires a membership in the Valley Coastal Chapter of the American Society of Safety 
Engineers and the Greater Ventura Area Chapter of the maintenance Superintendents 
Association.  The annual cost is $150.  The membership is currently not on the list of 
memberships that is approved by the Board each January.  The General Manager will 
move forward with the membership and include this membership in the January 2017 list. 
 
The General Manager informed the Committee that the District recently received a 
written request from LAFCo to consider a ballot vote for the position of Special District 
Alternate Member to Ventura LAFCo.  This item will move forward to Board. 
 
Director Baggerly reported to the Committee that he has been approached to get more 
information on water issues in the Ojai Valley and asked staff to look into the Federal 
nexus that may have drought relief funding.   

 
4. Discussion regarding content for Drought workshop. 

The Committee discussed the purpose, timing and content of such a meeting.  
Committee reviewed the agenda outline for the workshop and recommended specific 
changes to the order of speakers.   
  

5. Discussion regarding the request from California Special Districts Association for 
2017 Committee and Expert Feedback Team Participation. 
The Committee was informed of the CSDA’s notification that the Little Hoover 
Commission will conduct a special hearing on special districts, and develop 
recommendations related to visibility and accountability, local agency formation 
commissions, local analytical tools, reserve funds and property tax allocation.  Staff will 
keep the District informed on this activity. 
  



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Recreation Committee 

 
DATE:   September 9, 2016 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of September 6, 2016 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks 
Director Jim Word  

 Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 Denise Collin, Accounting Manager 
  
 Public – Dee Bennett  
  

2. Public comments.   
None.  
 

3. Board/Management Comments. 
Carol Belser reported on a busy Labor Day weekend that had no major incidents and the Water 
Park and campgrounds at near full occupancy. 

 
4. Review of the July 2016 Recreation Report. 

Report was reviewed and committee discussed that there appears to be no tangible reason for the 
increase in daily attendance, but a good result given the decline of Lake Casitas storage that was 
in the past noted to be a cause of reduced recreation attendance.  There two more astronomy 
nights, listed on the website. 
 
Director Hicks commented that he had met with Gary Wolfe and that the boat rental numbers are 
down compared to previous years.  The Park Store appears to doing well in meeting camper’s 
needs. 
 
Carol Belser reported that the Park Ranger Manual is being developed and reviewed, with 
considerable effort and good progress. 
  
The Committee recommended the July 2016 Report be moved forward to the Board as 
information. 
 

5. Discussion regarding the Recreation Area Fund and Fee Increase. 
Denise Collin is in the process of developing a financial history of the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area dating back to 1959.  While progress has been made on the identification of the more recent 
grant funding, attention to the 2015-16 audit will delay finding grants received prior to 1998 until 
the priority audit work is completed.   



 2 

 
Carol Belser presented the objective is to develop a fund balance for future improvements. The 
Committee reviewed fee hikes for day use, weekends and holidays.  Staff will prepare the 
recommendation for fee changes and with the direction to the fee changes to the Board’s 
consideration on September 28th.  

 
6. Review of Incidents and Comments. 

Carol Belser reported that incidents have not been summarized in time for the Committee meeting. 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes 

 
 
DATE:  September 9, 2016 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of September 9, 2016 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.       

Directors Peter Kaiser and Russ Baggerly 
  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
  Ron Merckling, Resources Manager 
    

 Public – William Weirick, Councilmember, City of Ojai 
    Randy Haney, Councilmember, City of Ojai 
    Angelo Spandrio 
    Bill Warner, Ojai Valley News 
 

2. Public Comments.   
None. 
 

3. Board/Manager comments.    
The General Manager commented that direction is needed concerning Casitas’ 
involvement in the design phase of the City-Calleguas interconnection that is intended to 
get State Water into western Ventura County.  A memorandum requesting discussion 
and direction will be presented to the Board. 
 

4. Discussion concerning letter by William Weirick and Randy Haney. 
The General Manager distributed to the Committee for review the third draft of a letter 
prepare by Ojai City Councilmembers William Weirick and Randy Haney.  The 
Committee was updated on the progress of Casitas’ discussions with the general 
managers of Calleguas Municipal Water District and Ventura Water regarding 
collaborative opportunities that are in action, and a historical perspective of the last two 
years’ of events that have highlighted the need to bring State Water into western Ventura 
County. 
 
Director Baggerly suggested, after review of the first draft and third draft, that the second 
and third paragraphs be deleted. 
 
The letter will be considered by the Ojai City Council on September 13th. 
 

5. Discussion regarding the conservation surcharge for monthly and annual 
customers.  
Ron Merckling informed the Committee that approximately 10 percent of the Casitas 
customers were in extraordinary excess of the assigned allocations which is continuing to 
place additional pressures on local water supplies.  Mr. Merckling is proposing that there 
be a consideration to raise the conservation surcharge to $5 per unit for both the annual 
and monthly customers.  
 



2 
 

Director Baggerly asked for a comparison of the conservation surcharge to that 
implemented by other water agencies.  Mr. Merckling presented several agencies that 
range from $5 to $1,000 per unit for customer exceedance of water allocations.  
 
This recommendation will be moved forward to the Board for consideration of adopting 
the change in the conservation surcharge. 
  



1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  Letter from Ojai City Council Members William Weirick and Randy Haney 

Date:   September 9, 2016 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive the letter as information, awaiting a 
final letter that is being considered for approval by the Ojai City Council on September 13, 
2016. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
The District has received several draft letters from Ojai City Council Members William Weirick 
and Randy Haney concerning the current drought and access to the State Water Project 
water supply.  The Council Members requested that the Casitas Board of Directors receive 
the letter, awaiting an issuance of a final letter that is to be considered by the Ojai City 
Council.  The attached letter is provided as information for the Casitas Board of Directors.   
 
The letter has been reviewed by the General Manager and the Executive Committee, with 
comment provided to the two authors of the September 6, 2016, letter. 











Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2016-2017 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2016 / 2017 2015 / 2016

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 564 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 564 422

AG Ag 451 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 451 298

C Commercial 75 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75 58

DI Interdepartmental 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8

F fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I Industrial 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1

OT Other 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 17

R Residential 121 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 121 106

RS - P Resale Pumped 147 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 147 50

RS - G Resale Gravity 163 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 163 456

TE Temporary 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 6

Total 1,562 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,562 1,421

Total 2015 / 2016 1,421 1,689 1,781 1,559 1,396 1,364 373 660 555 1,001 1,142 1,404 N/A 14,345



CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Cost Analysis 

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 -289.50 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,368.87

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

2014 / 2015 0.00 68,457.10 0.00 0.00 68,457.10

2015 / 2016 6.12 152,811.84 2,938.86 0.00 155,756.82

July 0.00 5,624.87 0.00 0.00 5,624.87

August 0.00 21,113.02 221.06 0.00 21,334.08

September 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

October 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

November 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

December 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

January 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Feburary 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

March 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

June 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total YTD Cost 0.00 26,737.89 221.06 0.00 26,958.95

Total Cost 578.33 605,907.66 32,930.62 0.00 639,416.61

Tax Assessment - County of Ventura: 2015 / 2016 -460,342.64

Total CMWD CFD 2013-1 Cost 179,073.97

Prepared by dcollin 9/7/2016 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

09/07/16

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $933,515 $931,030 1.901% 5/9/2016 4.77% 3456

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $854,301 $845,435 2.790% 3/28/2016 4.33% 3422

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFNR4 11/18/2024 $808,617 $801,048 2.870% 11/18/2015 4.11% 2951

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,015,531 $1,003,500 3.000% 3/24/2016 5.14% 3751

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 33133EFHV2 10/13/2022 $587,926 $580,423 2.200% 10/23/2015 2.98% 2196

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,368,336 $1,371,668 1.625% 10/3/2012 7.03% 997

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN6 12/10/2021 $545,009 $539,635 1.107% 5/9/2016 2.77% 1893

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $770,607 $776,697 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.98% 3156

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313383YJ4 9/8/2023 $475,341 $464,223 1.203% 7/14/2016 2.38% 2521

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313383YJ4 9/8/2023 $940,013 $921,304 1.203% 7/14/2016 4.72% 2521

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 6/11/2021 $666,412 $671,849 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.44% 1714

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,044,204 $1,051,690 5.125% 1/3/2012 5.39% 430

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 1/13/2022 $677,393 $700,022 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.59% 1926

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $683,558 $683,888 1.375% 3/12/2012 3.51% 68

*TB Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $806,697 $798,631 1.721% 5/1/2016 4.09% 2754

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ZR7 9/6/2024 $1,485,077 $1,496,417 2.625% 5/25/2016 7.67% 2879

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0K36 4/24/2026 $2,532,083 $2,563,350 2.125% 5/25/2016 13.14% 3467

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 7/15/2018 $1,127,743 $1,158,621 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.94% 668

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF4 1/15/2020 $1,126,095 $1,176,628 1.375% 11/18/2015 6.03% 1208

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $768,786 $836,214 2.750% 12/13/2013 4.29% 2588

Accrued Interest $133,362

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $19,217,246 $19,505,633 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $449 $449 0.61% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,854 $2,854 0.68% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $19,220,549 $19,508,936 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $19,226,902 $19,495,492

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $19,030,336 $19,225,523

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $5,668,606 $5,668,606

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $2 $2 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $24,889,157 $25,177,544

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $23,069,095 $23,264,281

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	9-14-16 Agenda
	8-24-16 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	August 24, 2016

	STREAMEM.2016-17
	Streamgageresol16-17
	Joint funding agreement and letter 2016-17
	Bill list
	Division.OfficerPosition090916 (3)
	Full.Time.Job.Description.RangerPSO.Division.Officer.draft.9.9.2016 (3)
	State Water memo 09 09 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	Vta Water RFQ
	Allocation Surcharge Recommended Increase (1)
	Resolution Conservation Surcharge Adjustment
	LAFCo Alternate Member
	07July2016 rec report
	Water Conservation August 2016 Update (1)
	1548 11038 SCG-Water LivingWise Program Summary Report_2016_WEB (1)
	Water Res Minutes 08 23 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Executive Minutes  08 26 2016
	Rec Minutes 09 06 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Executive Minutes  09 09 2016
	City of Ojai Letter Memo 09 09 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	City of Ojai Letter 09 06 2016
	Consumption 2016 - 2017
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2016-2017
	Investment Report 09-07-16

